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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT,
Plaintiff,

-agairst
THIRD

THE CITY OF NEW YORK, DEPUTY CHIEF MICHAEL AMENDED
MARINO, Tax Id. 873220,Individually andin his Official Capacity, COMPLAINT
ASSISTANT CHIEF PATROL BOROUGH BROOKYN NORTH
GERALD NELSON, Tax Id. 912370, Individuallyandin his Official 10 CV 6005
Capacity, DEPUTY INSPECTOR STEVEN MAURIELLO, Tax Id.
895117, Individually and in his Oficial Capacity, CAPTAIN JURY TRIAL
THEODORE LAUTERBORN, Tax Id. 897840, Individuallyand in DEMANDED
his Official Capacity, LIEUTENANT WILLIAM GOUGH, Tax Id.
919124, Individually and in his Official Capacity, SGT. ECF CASE
FREDERICK SAWYER, Shield No. 2576, Individually andin his
Official Capacity, SERGEANTKURT DUNCAN, ShieldNo. 2483,
Individually and in his Official Capacity, LIEUTENANT
CHRISTOPHERBROSCHART,Tax Id. 915354, Individuallyandin
his Official Capacity, LIEUTENANT TIMOTHY CAUGHEY, Tax
Id. 885374, Individuallyand in his Official Capacity, SERGEANT
SHANTEL JAMES, Shield No. 3004, Individuallyandin herOfficial
Capacity, , CAPTAIN TIMOTHY TRAINER, Tax Id. 899922,
Individually and in his Official Capacity, andP.0.’s “JOHN DOE”
#1-50, Individually andn their Official Capacity(the name JohiiDoe
being fictitious, as the true names are presently unknown),
(collectively referred to as “NYPD defendants”), FDNY
LIEUTENANT ELISE HANLON, individually and in her official
capacity as a lieutenant withthe New York City Fire Deparment,
JAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER, DR. ISAK ISAKOV,
Individually and in his Official Capacity, DR.LILIAN ALDANA -
BERNIER, Individually andin her Official Capacity and JAMAICA
HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER BEMPLOYEES “JOHN DOE” # 1-
50, Individually andin their Official Capacity (the name Johrboe
beingfictitious, as the true namsarepresentlyunknown),

Defendants.
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Plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT by hisattomeys,complainingof thedefendants,

respectfullyallege as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Plaintiff brings thisaction for compensatorydamages, punitive danagesand
attorney’sfeespursuantto 42 U.S.C. § 198&nd 42 U.S.C. § 1988or violations of hiscivil
rights, as saidrights are securedoy saidstatutesandthe Constittions of theStateof New York
andtheUnited States.

2. This actionseeks redress for a coordinatadd conentratedeffort by high ranking
officials within the New York City Police Deparment (hereinafter “NYPD”)to silence,
intimidate, threatenand retaliate against plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT, for his
docunentationand disclosure of corruptiomwith the NYPD. Specifically,that the NYPD had
estdlishedanillegal quota policy for the isuanceof summonseandarrestsandthat defendants
were falsifying and instructing police officers to suborn perjury on police reporiis orderto
distort COMPSTAT statistics. In orderto prevent disclosureof thesellegal and uncanstitutional
acts, which would have revealedrampant NYPD corruption, defendants unlawfully entered
plaintiff's home, had him forcibly removedin handcuffs, seizethis personakffects,including
evidencehe had gathered docunenting NYPD corryption and had him admitted to Jamaica
Hospital Cater acpinst his will, under false and perjurious infornation hat plaintiff was
“emotionally disturbed. Thereafer, defendanofficers conspiredwith Jamaica Hospital Center
personneto have phintiff involuntarily committed inits psychiatricward for six (6) days,all in
an effort to tarnish plaintiff's reputation and discredit his allegations shoulche succeedin

disclosing evidencef widespreadorruptionwithin theNYPD.



JURISDICTION

3.  Thisactionis brought pursuarib 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and 42 U.S.C. § 1988, and the
Fourth, Fifth, and Fourteenth Amendantsto the United StatesConditution. Jurisdictionis
founded upon 28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1343.

VENUE

4. Venueis properlylaid in the SoutherrDistrict of New York underU.S.C. 8§
1391(c),in that the defendantCity of New York is a municipalcorporation thatesidesin the
SoutherrDistrict of New York.

JURY DEMAND

5. Plaintiff respectfullydemands trial by jury of all issues irthis matterpursuanto
Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b).

PARTIES

6.  Plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTIs a nale, acitizen of theUnited
Statesandatall relevanttimesaresicent of theCity andStateof New York.

7. Defendanh CITY OF NEW YORK was and is a municipal corporation duly
organizedandexistingunderandby virtue of the laws of th8tateof New York.

8. Defendant CITY OF NEW YORK maintans the New York City Police
Departnent, aduly authorizedpulic authority and/or policelepariment, auhorized to perform
all functions of a police depanent as per the applicalle sections of theNew York Stae
Criminal ProcedureLaw, acting under the dection and supervision ofthe aforanentioned

municipal corporationCity of New York.



9. That at all times hereinaftermentioned, theindividually naned defendants
DEPUTY CHIEF MICHAEL MARINO, ASST. CHIEF GERALD NELSON, DEPUTY
INSPECTOR STEVEN MAURIELLO, CAPTAIN THEODORE LAUTERBORN,
LIEUTENANT TIMOTHY CAUGHEY, SERGEANT SHANTEL JAMES, LIEUTENANT
WILLIAM GOUGH, SERGEANT FREDERICKSAWY ER, SERGEANTKURT DUNCAN,
LIEUTENANT CHRISTOPHER BROSCHARTCAPTAIN TIMOTHY TRAINER, and
P.0.’s*"JOHN DOE”" #1-50were dulyswan policeofficersof said deparhentandwere acting
undcer the supervisionfesaid departmentandaccodingto their official duties.

10. That at all times herenafter mentioned the NYPD defendants, either
personally or through their enployees, wereacting under colorof state law and/or in
compliance withthe official rules,reguations,laws, statutescustans, usagesand/orpractices
of theStateor City of New York.

11. Eachand all of the acts of the NYPD defendantsallegedherein were done
by said defendantsvhile acting within the scopeof their employnent by defendantTHE
CITY OF NEW YORK.

12. Eachand all of the acts of the NYPD defendantsallegedherein were done
by said defendantwhile actingin furtheranceof their employmentby defendanTHE CITY
OF NEWYORK.

13. That at all tmes hereinaftermentionel, the individuay named defendant

LIEUTENANT ELISE HANLON was a duly sworn lieutenant with tNew York City Fire



Departnent (“FDNY”) andwasactingunder the supeision of saiddeparinentandaccording
to her official duties.

14. That at all times hereinafter mentioned the FDNY defendant,was acting
under cobr of state law and/orin campliance with the official rules, regulations, laws,
statutescustans, usages and/@racticesof theStateor City of New York.

15. Eachandall of the actsof the FDNY defendantllegedhereinwere doneby
said defendanivhile actingwithin the scope oher employnent bydefendanfTHE CITY OF
NEW YORK.

16. Eachandall of the actsof the FDNY defendantllegedhereinwere doneby
said defendantvhile acting in furtheranceof her empoyment by defendantTHE CITY OF
NEW YORK.

17. Defendant the JAMAICA HOSPITALMEDICAL CENTER (hereinafter
“JHMC") is aprivately ownedhospitallocatedat 8900Van Wyck Expressway, Jamaica, New
York, 11418 and performall functionsof a hospital.

18. Thatat all times herenafter mentioned thedefendant, AMC, was a donestic
corporation dulyorganizedand existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
New York.

19. That at all tmes hereinaftermentioned, defendant JHMC owned, operated,
managed and controlled @ertain hospital for the treatment of the sick and ailing in the
County of QueensStateof New York, andassuchhelditself outasduly qualifed torender

properand adequatbospitalservicefor thetreamentof thesick andailing in the Countyof



Queens State ofNew York, andassuchhelditself out as duly qualified to renderproperand
adequatehospital, nedicaland surgicalservicesto membersof the generalpublic, including
plaintiff.

20. That at all times hereinaftermentioned, defendanDR. ISAK ISAKOV, was
a physician dulylicensedto practicemedicine inthe Stateof New York, and as such held
himself outasduly qualified torendemproper and adegiatemedicalsewnicesto manbers ofthe
general publicincludingplaintiff.

21. That at all times hereinaftermentioned,defendantDR. ISAK ISAKOV was
the attendingphysician of the Psychiatric Depatment of JHMC, and was an enployee,
agent, servanand/or indepertent contractor retainedby JHMC to render medical services,
care and treanentpatients se«king medical careat JHMC.

22. That at all times hereinaftermentioned, defendanDR. LILIAN ALDANA -
BERNIER,was a physicianduly licensedto practce nedicinein the Stateof New York, and
as suchheld herselfout as duly quaified to renderproperand adequatemedical servicesto
membersof thegeneralpublic, includingplaintiff.

23. That at all times hereinaftermentioned, defendanDR. LILIAN ALDANA -
BERNIER was the admitting physicianof the Pgchiatric Department of JHMC, and was
an aenployee, agent, servant and/andependent antractor retained by JHMC to render
medical services;areandtreatmentpatients seekingmedicalcareat JHMC.

24. Thatat all times herenafter mentioned, thelefendants JHM@EMPLOYEE'S

“JOHN DOE” # 1-50 were working for and were acting under the supervisionof JHMC
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accoding to their official duties.
FACTUAL BACKGROUND
Plaintiffs Exemplary Career In the U.S. Navy and NYPD

25.  Plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTIis a New York City Police Officer and
hasbeenenployedby theNew York CityPoliceDepartment(“NYPD”) since July, 2002.

26.  Prior to the eventssetforth below, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwas
a decoratetllew York Citypoliceofficer andUnited StatedNavy veteran.

27.  From1993to 1997,plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTsavedhonorablyin

theUnited StatesNavy.

28. During this time, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT received several
commendations, includinthe “National DefenseSevice Medal” and the “First Good Conduct
Medal.”

29.  After four yearsof distinguished servicelaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT
receivedan honorabledischargefrom the United StatesNavy on July 22, 1997.

30. Plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT, decidetb join theNew York CityPolice

Departnentin July 2002.

31. About a yeaafterjoining theNYPD, plaintiff beganworking atthe 8f'
Precinctwhereheremaineduntil October31, 2009.

32.  In total,plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT worked for sixyearsatthe 8F'
Precinct.

33. Duringthistime, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwas apatrol dficer atthe
81°' Precinct.

34. Plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT was a@én sought outby other police



officersfor hisknowledgegexperienceandsound judgrantin handling difficult work situations.

35. In his sevenyear careerwith the NYPD, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT
had anexamplary record and in fact received multiple commendatins for his work as a
police officer.

36. Forexanple,On October 28, 2006laintiff receiveda “MeritoriousPolice
Duty Medal” for his “outstandingperformance”as apoliceofficer.

37.  Similarly, on June 4, 200§laintiff receved an awardfrom theNYPD for
his “dedicationto theNew York CityPoliceDeparmentandto theCity of New York.”

Plaintiff Witnesse€nforcement of an lllegal Quota Policy for Summonsesand Arrests

38. During histime at the 8% precinct, plaintiff beganto observe apattern
and practiceof supervisorsenforcing a de facto quota policy requiring policeofficers to
issuea certaimumber summonandarrester month.

39.  Additionally, plaintiff obsered that personal perimance evaluations were
basedon adherencedo this quotafor summons and arrestandofficers failing to meet the
required amount weresubjectto work related consequencesuch as loss of overtime, tour
changesanddenialof vacation days.

40. Soon afterDEPUTY INSPEQOR STEVEN MAURIELLO’s assigmentto
the 8F' precinct,plaintiff and his fellow police officers startedto receiveexplicit threatsof tour
tranders,undesirablessigments, poor perfonanceevaluationandother advese consequences
for failure to meettheir monthlyarrest anddummons quotas.

41. These admonishnents to adhere to monthly quotas were repeatedly
emphasized bythe defendanbfficers at the dily roll calls in the 8f' precinct throughout
plaintiff's employmert.

42.  For exanple, on Decanber 8, 2008, DefendanMAURIELLO berated his
8



officers for not writing enough summonseper month: “I| SEE EIGHT FUCKING
SUMMONSESFOR A 20 DAY PERIOD OR A MONTH. IF YOU MESS UP, HOW THE
HELL DO YOU WANT ME TO DO THERIGHT THING BY YOU?”

43. Defendant MAURIELLO repeatedly drov@ome this message, explicitly
threateningto move officers out of their platoonsif they did not makeheir numbers. For
examnple, on October28, 2008, MAURIELLO shouted outo his officers: “IF YOU DON'T
WORK, AND | GET THE SAME NAMES BACK AGAIN, I'M MOVING YOU. YOURE
GOING TO GO TO ANOTHERLATOONT?

44, Defendants’ illegal quota policy was enforced not just by Defendant
MAURIELLO, but by other highranking menbers of the 81% Precinct. For example, o
January 282009, Sergeant Reond Stukesstated: “I| TOLD YOU GUYS LAST MONTH:
THEY ARE LOOKING AT THESE NUMBERS, AND PEOPLE AREGOING TO GET
MOVED. THEY CAN MAKE YOUR JOB REAL UNCOMFORTABLE, AND WE ALL
KNOW WHAT THAT MEANS.”

45. On Deemler 8, 2008, anotheSergeantmade similar threats:“WHEN |
TELL YOU TO GET YOURACTIVITY UP, ITS FOR A REASON,BECAUSE THEY ARE
LOOKING TO MOVE PEOPLE, AND HE'S SERIOUS THERE'S PEOPLE IN HERE
THAT MAY NOT BE HERENEXT MONTH.”

46.  Additionally, onOctober18, 2009 ano#r Segeantmadeit explicitly clearto
the subordinatefficersthat“AGAIN, IT'S ALL ABOUT THENUMBERS”

Officers Were Being Instructed to Make Arrests and Issue SummonsesWith out Probable
Cause

47. In fact, defendantsvere so obsessed witlmaking their “numbers” that they

literally instructed officerdo make arrests when therewas no evidenceof any criminal actiity



whatsoever.

48.  For exanple, on October 31, 2008)efendanMAURIELLO orderedhis officers to
arrest virtially everybodythey camean contactwith at 120 Chaunceptreetin Brooklyn, with or
without probable cause’EVERYBODY GOES. | DONT CARE. YOURE ON 120
CHAUNCEY AND THEY'RE POPPING CHAMPAGNE? YOKE E'M. PUT THEM
THROUGH THE SYSTEM. THEY GOT BANDANNAS ON, ARREST THEM.
EVERYBODY GOES TONIGHT.THEY'RE UNDERAGE?FUCK IT.”

49.  Similar orders were given by a Sergeanton November 23,2008. “IF
THEY'RE ON A CORNER, MAKE ‘EM MOVE. IF THEY DON'T WANT TO MOVE,

LOCK ‘EM UP. DONE DEAL. YOU CAN ALWAYS ARTICULATE [A CHARGE] LATER.”

50. Thus, policeofficers at the 8% Precinctwere being instuctedto arrest and
summongully innocent peoplér crimes that ever occurredor nothing norethan standing oa
streetcornerin their neighborhoodandthen“articulate” or createachargdater.

NYPD Policy Making Offici als Were the Driving Force Behind This Quotaand Policy

51. Defendants’myopic obsessionwith quotascame straight from the highest
ranking officialsin theNew York CityPoliceDepartnent.

52.  For exanple, Chief of TransportationMICHAEL SCAGNELLI, a three star
Chief, was quoted assaying: “HOW MANY SUPERSTARSAND HOW MANY LOSERSDO
WE HAVE, HOW MANY SUMMONSESDOES THE SQUAD WRITE. WE NEED MORE
ACTIVITY, IF YOUR PRODUCTVITY FALLS BELOW PAREITHER YOU OR THE C.O.

IS GOING TO HAVE TO ANSWER.”

53. Anotherhigh-ranking officialat the 8£' Precinct LieutenantDelafuente,

actually gavespecific numbersthat must be rat by eachofficer: “[CAPTAIN STARKY]
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WANTS AT LEAST 3 SEATBELTS (SUMMONSES)1 CELL PHONE(SUMMONS)AND 11
OTHERS (SUMMONSES).”

Plaintiff Refusesto Comply with the NYPD’s Unlawful Quota Policy,Leadingto Increased
Pressureand Scrutiny from His Supervisors

54. Unlike nany of his colleaguesplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT refused
to issueor to be coercedo issueunwarantedandillegal summonseand arrestinnocent people

in theabsenc®f probablecausesimply to meeta quota.

55. As a direct result of this “non-compliance,” in January 2009, plaintiff
ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT be@n to be scrutinized and increasingly pressude by his
supervisorsand commandingpfficer to increasehis “ACTIVITY” (i.e. not writing enough
summons and not makingnougharrests),or face possible lowperformanceevaluations and
tour/comnandreassigment.

56.  Specifically,on Januaryl3, 2009,plaintiff was summonedo a nmeetingwith
MASCOL, who commanded hinto increasehis “OVERALL ACTIVITY,” or he would be
placed on“PERFORMANCE MONITORING” and besubjectto “LOW QUARTERLY
EVALUATIONS.”

57.  Further,when plaintiff requestecan explanaton of thelieutenant’sdefinition
of “ACTIVITY,” MASCOL explicitly referencedthe need to increase his issuance of
summonses arafrests.

Plaintiff Receivesa Poor EvaluationBasedOn His Low Summons “Activity”

58. On January 29, 2009, plaintiff did, in fact, recave a poor peformance
evaluation asa result of his failure to issue the mandated nonber of summons andarrests
requiredby his supervisors anBlorough chief.

59.  Specifically, plaintiff receivedan overall rating of 2.5 out of 5.0, despite the

11



fact that the averageof his scoresbasedon the number ofcategoriescontained in the
evaluation shoulttavebeenmarkedly higher than 2.5.

60. For exanple, plaintiff's averagefor “performanceareas”was actually 3.75,
and contained noating which was lessthan 3.0. Sinilarly, plaintiff's averagefor “behavior
dimensions” was 3.25, stilVell above the 2.5 ratinghathereceived.

61. In addition, the balance of the evaluation contained the following praise
for plaintiff:

P.O. Schoolcraft shas good community inteaction by
eliciting information from witnessesand victims. He also
mediates problens between disputing individuals and
provides counseling ken famlies have conflicts. P.O.
Schoolcraftis able to complete arrestforms accuratelyand
completely [and] is able to fingerprint, photograptand
procesall arrestrelatedpaperwork.

62. Thusiit is clearthatplaintiff's failure to meetthe NYPD summons/arrests
guotawhich plaintiff's supervisordemrmed “pooractivity” andattributedto plaintiff's
“unwilling[ ness]to changehis approachto meeting performance standards” vas the real

reasorwhy plaintiff receivedsuch a poor perforamceevaluation.

Plaintiff ChallengesHis Low Work Evaluation, Resulting in Intense Scrutiny By His
Supervisors

63.  Thereafter,plaintiff immediately informed his supervisors of his intentioto
appealhis evaluationbasedon the &ct that they had either miscalculatedheir overall rating or
he had beenevaluatedon an illegal and unconstitutional bas (i.e. not neetingarrest/sunmons
guota).

64. OnFebruaryl, 2009, followingplaintiff's disclosure of higntentionto appeal,
a poster thatead“IF YOU DON'T LIKE YOUR JOB THEN MAYBE YOU SHOULD GET
ANOTHER JOB” was postetb plaintiff's locker.

12



65. On February3, 2009, Sgt. Meyer, the SquadSergeantat the 8f' Precinct,
directly pressuredplaintiff to increase hissunmons activity: “WHY DONT YOU JUST
CONFORM? THEY WANT A BOOK (20 SUMMONSES), SO EVERYONE WRITES 15
(SUMMONSES). YOU COULD GETAWAY WITH 10 OR 12 (SUMMONSES) AND A
COLLAR (ARREST)”

66. Following that incident, on February 20, 2009 plaintiff ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFT was approached Yo MASCOL who informed plaintiff that the only way
plaintiff could improvefuture performanceevaluationswasif plaintiff raisedhis “ACTIVITY,
by writing “MORE SUMMONSES” ancdbeing“MORE PROACTIVE.”

67. In responsdo this ultimatum, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT informed
MASCOL that he would try to improve his activity but that he would notwrite illegal
summonses oarrestpeoplein the absenceof probablecauseto believethat a sutmmonsable or
arrestable offensehadbeencommitted.

DefendantsAttempt To “Strong-Arm” Plaintiff Into Dropping His Appeal

68. Thereafter, onFebruary 25, 2009plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT was
commandedo a rreetingwith all of the supervisorat the 8%' Precinctto discuss theppealof
his evaluation.

69. The meeting was attended by, anongst others DEPUTY INSPECTOR
STEVEN MAURIELLO, SERGEANT WEISS, LIEUTENANT DELAFUENTE, CAPTAIN
THEODORE LAUTERBORN, LIEUTENANT RAFAEL MASCOL, LIEUTENANT
TIMOTHY CAUGHEY, andSERGEANT RAYMOND SUKES.

70. During this meeting, the aforanentioned supervisorsepeatedlyattemptedto
discourageplaintiff from appealinghis performanceevaluaton andimplicitly threatened plaintiff

with retaliationif he pursued thissue.
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71. In addition in an aggressivethreateningtone, a PBA union official at the
meeting expressed “aacern” that the appeal would be reviewed by DEPUTY CHIEF
MICHAEL MARINO and “HE’S GOING TO LOOK AT YOUR EVALUATION, HE MAY
PULL UP ALL YOUR ACTIVITY AND THEN HE'S GOING TO SAY YOU WANT TO
KNOW WHAT YOUR EVALUATION IS? LOOK AT THE ACTIVITY, WHAT ARE YOU
FUCKING KIDD ING ME?! KNOWING HIM, HE'S GANG TO TALK A LOT OF SHIT.”

72. In fact, the sole purpose of thmeetingwas that plaintiff had an
insufficientnumberof sunmonsesindarrestsandassuchhis evaluationvaswarranted.

73.  The commandingofficers at this meetingrepeatedlyinformed plaintiff that
he could geta higher evaluationif he wouldraise his activity, but when phintiff repeatedly
requested aexplanatiomasto the definition of “activity” he wasrepeatedlyinformed he needed
to write more summonsemdarrests.

74.  Specifically, plaintiff was infomed in sum and substancHOW ARE WE
GOING TO JUDGESOMEBODY THAT HAS TEN COLLARS THROUGHTHE YEAR AND
MAYBE 25 SUMMONSESTHROUGH THE YEAR, COMPARED TO SOMEONE WHO'S
GOT 4 COLLARS WITH 14 SUMMONSESTHROUGH THE YEAR? THERE'SGOT TO BE
SOME VARIATION. THE SQUAD SERGEANT MAKES A DETERMINATION WHO
HIS TOP GUYS ARE, CMPAREDTO HIS LOWERGUYS. THAT'S HOW ITS DONE.”

75. Then,in a blatantly transparengct of intimidation, the PBA union officer at
the meetinghen referenced policefficerswho had previouslybeenteminated ortransferred as
aresultof vocalizing objectionto theirevaluations.

76.  This meetingwas an overt attempt to silenceplaintiff's appealbecauseof the
supervisor'sprior knowledge of thellegality of issuing substandagerformance evaluations

basedon an officer’s failure to meeta summons quotavhich hadbeenfirmly establishedy the
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LaborArbitration Tribunal norethanthreeyearsearlier.
The NYPD’s Quota Policy: Struck Down As lllegal in January 2006

77. In fact, the NYPD hadpreviouslybeenfound tobein violation of New York
State LabolLaw Section2154a, which makesit illegal to issuepoor evaluationdor an officer’s
failure to meetthe requirerant of an establishecsummons quota.Seeln the Matter of P.B.A.

and City of NewYorkCase# A-10699-04.

78. The aforementioneddecision was based on Police Officer David Velez's

appeal ofhis 2005 performnce evaluationfrom the 73" Precinct, which was based entirely

on his failureto meetthe minimum summons quotdd )

79. In that matter, P.O. Velez presated evidencethat the then Commandng
Officer of the 7%'Precinct, CHIEF MICHAEL MARINO, a named defendantin the instant
matter, issued directivethat officers must neet “aquota of10 (ten) sunmonsper month” and

“that the policeofficersin squad A-lreceved lower markson their evaluationsif the officers
did not meet'this minimumrequiranent.” (Id. at9).
80.  Additionally, CHIEF MICHAEL MARINO reducedthis directive to writing

and distributedt to all of the supervisors in the ?®recinct. (Id.)

81. The aforementioned writteshrective ordered that supervising officers were
requiredto evaluateofficers basedon their adherencéo the minimum quota of summonsasd
arrests. Id.

82. As aresult of CHIEF MARINO'’s directive, Sgt. Lurch issueda nmemo to
all officers in the 7% Precinct “remind[ing] [officers] that a FAILURE TO WRITE THE
REQUIRED AMOUNT OF SUMMONSES AND FAILURE TO MAKE THE REQUIRED

NUMBER OF ARRESTFOREACH RATING PERIODWILL RESULTIN SUBSTANDARD
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PERFORMANCE RATINGS.” (Id. at10).

83. The aforementionednemo was entitled “Squad Activity Expectations,”and
the word “activity” in that memo was specifically referringto the requisite nunber of
summonses needed toeet the quota, which is unequivocal eviderafethe fact thatP.O.
SCHOOLCRAFT’s own low evaluationn the present matter based on his “poor activity’

directly correlateso non-compliance witranillegal summons/arrest quota.

84. While defendantgleniedthe existenceof any quota, thearbitrator
emphatically rejectedefendantstlaims:

The Arbitrator finds that C.O. Marino’s writing and Sergeant
Lurch’s memo could not havebeencleare: “failure to write the
required amountof summonses...will result in substandard
perfomance ratings..”  Further, the asterisk in the ‘goal
column m&es itclearthat[these] goalsare monthly, quarterlyand
yearly. The Arbitrator is completely persuadethat the “goals”
column onthis memo meetsthe definition in Labor Law Section
215-afor “quota” ... [Thus], theNew York Police Department
violated NewYork StateLaborLaw Section215-aby establishing

andmaintaininga summons quotd.
(Id. at10, 27) (emphasis added).

85.  Notwithstanding thisfinding, the chief perpetratorof this unlawful policy,
MICHAEL MARINO, was subsequentlpromoted by the NYPD as DeputyChief of Patrol
Borough Brooklyn North,in chargeof supervising theentire Borough, which is also where
the 8£' Precinctis located.

86. Given the existencef the aforanentioned related appeal and subsequent
decision, it is clear that the February25, 2009 “meting” was an obvious effort to prevent
plaintiff’'s appeal,to avoid the repercussions talefendantswvhich could follow if they were
foundto have violatedhe previousorder,andengagedn thisillegal quotapracticeonce again.

87. Furtherrore, this “meeting” was an attempt to preventplaintiff from exposing
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the NYPD'’s pattern and practice of falsifying training logs during roll calls, in which
commanding officersvould requirepatrol officersto sign a log indicating thattheyhadreceived
training that day on various policesubjects,whenin fact, they had received nosuch training
from their supervisors.

Plaintiff Refuses to Dop His Appeal and Instead DirectlyChallengesthe NYPD’s Unlawful
Quota Policy

88. It is clearthatthe February25, 2009 “neding” was an obviouseffort to
preventplaintiff's appeato awoid the repercussione defendantsvhich couldfollow.
89.  Notwithstanding their implicit threats and veiled tactics of intimidation,
plaintiff infor medthe group that he would pursue the ape
90. Thereafter,on March 11, 2009,plaintiff’'s counsel,Brown & Gropper,wrote
a letterto defendant MAJRIELLO which diredly challenged th&lYPD’s unlawful quota policy
andthe use othis policy as a basisfor plaintiff’'s perfomance evaluabn. Spedfically, in this
letter,plaintiff’'s counselwroteasfollows:
We areconcernedhat our client’s negativeevaluationis basedot
on thefactorssetforth in Patrol Guide 205-48, butatheron his
alleged lack of “activity” rel ated to his number ofarreds and
summonsssued Yet, Patrol Guide 205-48 mkesno reference to
“activity” levels.  Furthernore, we are unavare of anyPatrol
Guide provision whichdefineshow much “activity” is required to

achieveasatisfactoryevaluation.

Plaintiff's Refusalto Drop His Appeal Reallts in IncreasedHarasganent and Intimid ation
by His Superior Officers

91. As aresultof plaintiff's intentionto pursue hisappeal,plaintiff's supervisors
at the81™ Precinctbeganto createanincreaingly hostilework environmat for him.

92. Specifically, on March 16, 2009, defendanCAUGHEY issued plaintiff a
written reprmandfor not docunenting inhis memo bookhat he hadusedthe bathroomfacility

on his assignegost.
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93. Defendant CAUGHEY also confiscated plaintifiseno book andmade a
photocopyof plaintiff's official notes,which docunented defendantgrevious msconduct, and
morespecifically,thatof WEISS.

94. That sane day plaintiff reportedthe incidentto the duty Captain,
defendant AUT ERBORN.

95.  Plaintiff requestedhatdefendant AUTERBORN docunentthis act of
retaliationagainsthimin areport.

96. DefendantLAUTERBORN respondedto this request in sunand substance:
‘“WHAT DO YOU WANT TO REPORT?DIDN'T WE THLL YOU WHEN YOU LEFT HERE
THAT THERE’'S GONNABE A LOT MORE SUPERVISION?THAT'S WHAT HAPPENS...
YOU THINK THAT THIS IS... YOU KNOW... RETALIATION... THIS IS A MATTER OF
SUPERVISION.”

97. DefendantLAUTERBORN further warned plaintiff that, after the threat of
a transfer,"THE DEVIL YOU KNOW IS MUCH BETTER THAN THE DEVIL YOU
DON'T,” and that from this point onward, plaintiff better “CROSS YOUR I(S) AND DOT
YOUR T(S).”

98. During this conversation, defendadfAUTERBORN informed plaintiff that
he wasbeing carefully monitored becausef his “POOR PERFORMANCE”and suggsted that
it should not be asurprisenow if evenminor infractionsresultin disciplinary actionevenif
they hadnot previouslyesultedn suchaction.

99. DefendanttAUTERBORN further informed plaintiff that he wasbeing placed
on “PERFORMANCEMONITORING” becauséhis “NUMBERS” were not sufficient andthat
defendant MAURIELLOwas a “FANATIC” about ensuringfficers havehigh “ACTIVITY,”

implicitly threateningo transferplaintiff shouldhe notincreasehis“A CTIVITY.”
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100. As he had previously infared MASCOL, plaintiff reiterated to defendant
LAUTERBORN that he wouldwork to improve his‘ACTIVITY” but refusedto issuelllegal
summonses omake false arrestsabsentprobablecauseof a crime or violation, to which
defendantLAUTERBORN respondedby openly mockingplaintiff: “YOU WANT TO BE
‘MR. COMMUNITY’, IS THAT WHAT YOUR DOING?”

101. Defendant LAUTERBORN proceeded tmogide plaintiff with exanples of
situationswhereplaintiff could makearrestsor issue summonsés increase higctivity degite
the fact thattherehadbeen‘NO VIOLATION OF LAW.”

102. Specifically, defendantAUTERBORN instructed plaintiff to approacland
detainyoung adults mely for sitting in front of a high crime building,regardless oprobable
causeor reasonablsuspicion.

103. FurtherdefendantLAUTERBORN then suggestedhat were he to hear one
of thoseindividuals curse during this interaction,it would then be appropriatéo arrestthem
despite havingcommitted “NO VIOLATION OF LAW,” becausethe police cannotppear
“SOFT” in these neighborhoods.

Defendants Attempt to Isolate and SeparatPlaintiff from His Fellow Officers

104. In a further effort to intimidate plaintiff, in March of 2009 defendantsalso
began tasolateplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTfrom his fellow officers by threatening and
disciplining PoliceOfficer Chanfor simplytalking to plaintiff.

105. As aresultfellow policeofficersat the 8f' precinctconsistently avoided
plaintiff out of fearthatsupervisors would retaliagganstthem.

Defendants Escalat Their Intimidation Tactics by Taking Away Plaintiff's Gun and Shield

106. Thereafter, plaitiff learned from P.O. ZUCKER of the &1 Precinct that

defendants werattempting to executea scenarioportrayng plaintiff as being psychologically
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unfit to work.

107. Specifically, onMarch 16, 2009 WEISS was overheardstating,in referenceo
plaintiff: “I'M GOING TO HAVE HIM PSYCHED.”

108. In April of 2009, defendantssaw an opportunity to pursue this schane
when plaitiff hadalegitimatehealthissue.

109. In furtherance of this plan, plaintiff was required to consult NYPD
psychologis Dr. CatherineLamsteinfor a psychological euation following an examination
by NYPD policesurgeon, Joseph Cuffio, M.D., for chest paingXgeriencean April 3, 2009.

110. During hisexamination with Dr. Lamstein, plaintiff disclosedthe existence
of illegal NYPD policiesandpracticesandother corruption he had observed overghstcouple
of yeas.

111. At the conclusion oDr. Lamstein’s examination, andimmediatel/ following
plaintiff's disclosue of rampant corruption within the §1Precinct,Dr. Lamsteinabruptly
excusecdherselffrom the roomfor severalminutesand suddenlyreturnedonly to inform plaintiff
thathewas requiredo immediatelysurrender higunandshield.

Plaintiff's Appeal Is Suddenly Closed Without HiKnowledgeor Consent

112. On April 14, 2009, the followingday, plaintiff's perfomance evaluation
appeal wascoincidentally” andinexplicadly closed,without a hearing or notice @ny kind as
to the basis of thelosure.

113. It should be notedhat while the appealwas closedin fact on April 14,
2009, plaintiffwasnot informedof that fact at the time and leaahof that fact only after he made
inquiries about the status of his appeal

114. Despitebeing deniedany information regardinghis appeal plaintiff continued

to relentlessly inquir@bout theappealprocesswhenandif a hearingwould ever be scheduled
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or held,to which NYPD officials repeatedlyrefusedto discloseany information, andfeigned
ignorance.

115. Additionally, plaintiff repeatdly sent letters to the Patroman’s Benevolent
Association(hereinafter“PBA”) and their lawyers, in furtheranceof pressing hisappeal,to
which theyrepeatdly informedhim thatthey could not help.

Defendants Attempt To Further Isolate and Degrade Plaintiff by Assigning Him to the
TelephoneSwitchboard

116. Thereafter, throughout the ramer of 2009, plaintiff continued to be
systenatically isolatedfrom the remainder of theprecinct in the form of reassigment to
telephoneswitchboardiuty.

117. While there plaintiff was subjected to overtattenpts of intimidation
and haragsent inthe form of fellow police officers and supervising officerseferringto him as
a “ZERO” and/or th¢HOUSEMOUSE.”

118. Additionally,throughout higeassigment, plaintiff withessedurther evidence
of continued corruption and subornation ofperjury on numerou®ccasionsin the form of
officers, commandingnd subordinate falsifying information containedin complainantcrime
repors (UR61’s) and/offailing to issue thenaltogethein thefaceof reporteccrime.

1109. During thesame period, despite having hgun and shield removed due to
his allegedpsychological instabilityand/or concernsfor his and his fellow officers’ safety,
plaintiff was assignetb voucheloadedweapons and/as assignetb handlearrests.

Plaintiff Reports theCorruption He Has WitnessedTo Internal Affairs

120. On August 18, 2009,in responseto this campaign of retaliation and

intimidation, plaintiff's father, Larry Schoolcraft, contactedavid Durk, a former NYPD

Detectivewho had assisted-rank Serpicoin the 1970sin uncovering corruptiorwithin the
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NYPD to seekhis counsetegardinghe proper action® betaken.
121. Following that conversation,David Durk contacted Brandon Del Pozo at

the Intemal Affairs Bureau“IAB”) to apprise him of theorruption within the 8£' Precinct.
122. Thereafter,on August 20, 2009 plaintiff contactedIAB directly, by filing

an Unusuallncident Report (UF-49), alleging that defendant CAUGHEY-- ironically the

Integrity Control Officer for the 8! precinct-- had unlavully aidedWeiss’ entry intoa locked
office at the pecinct and removed poéntially damaging doaments from SGT. WEISS’
peronnel file,all at thebehesbof WEISS.
123. Specifically, in this report, entitled “CORRUPTION INVOLVING THE
INTEGRITY CONTROL PROGRAM OF THB1®" PRECINCT", plaintiff allegedasfollows:
SergeantSteven Weiss (Assistant Integrity Control Officer, 81
Precinct), assistedby his sugrvisor, a Lieutenant Timothy
Caughey(Integrity Control Officer,81 Precinct”), did intationally
enter, without pemisson or auttority, a locked office containing
sensitivedepariment files, and removeddocunents pertainingo
Civilian Complaints thatwere inside Sgt. Weiss’s Deparhent
Personnel Folder... [These] docments werea potentialobstacle
with regardsto Sgt. Weiss’ future Evaluation and®ramotion to
New York City Police Lieutenant.Sgt. Weiss has sincebeen
promoted to New York City Police Lieutenant and isno longer
assignedo the 8% Precinct...It wouldappearthat] Sgt. Weisshas
benefittedgreatlyfrom his action(s).
124. This complaint was sentdirectly to Chief CharlesV. Campisi, Chief of the
InternalAffairs Bureauyia cetified mail on August 20, 20009.
Plaintiff's SuperiorsBecomeAware of Plaintiff's Complaints to Internal Affairs
125. Almost immediately after informing IAB of these illegal practices and

widespread corruptioat the 8f'Precinct IAB detectivesrepeately left messagesor plaintiff

at the 8f' Precirct, despite the eyplicit duty of IAB to keep such complaints confidential,

effectively ard implicitly alerting plaintiff's superiorsthat he was now communicatingwith
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IAB on investijations,criminal in nature concerninghe 81% Precinct.

126. On September 2, 2009, plaintiff sent a written request to defendant
STEVEN MAURIELLO requestingn writing thatthe apealof his evaluationbe sentdirectly to
thePatrolBorough BrooklyrNorth immediately.

127. Not only did defendantSTEVEN MAURIELLO fail to issueany responsdo
this request, but headneverevenpreviously sent thappeal- ashewasmandatedo -- nor did
he everinform plaintiff that hisappeal had been closed in Aprdespiteplaintiff's repeated
inquiries.

Plaintiff RevealsRampant lllegal Conduct At the 81 Precinct to the Quality Assurance
Division of the NYPD

128. Thereafterpon October7, 2009, during the course afthreehour meetingwith
the Quality Assurane Division (“QAD”), plaintiff described indetail repeatedinstances of
police misconduct hehad witnessedin the 8f' Precinct, including but notlimited to,
commandingand supervisingfficers’ manipulation ofcrime statisticsandenforcenentof illegal
guaapolicies.

1209. In that meetingplaintiff discussedinter alia, the illegal quota policyand the
underreporting, mnipulation and/ofalsification of crime reportsmadeto NYPD officials in
the 8£' Precinct.

130. Specifically, plaintiff reportedat least thirteen instanceswhere crimes were
being underreporterh order toavoid index cnine classification- i.e. FelonyGrandLarcenyand
Robbery underreported reflectMisdemeanoiost Property etc.

131. Further,in orderto accanplish theseends,the allegationsof crime reportdiad
actuallybeenmanipulatedoy supervisingofficers andin same caseswvere neverdocunentedat

all by theNYPD.
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132. On October 14, 2009, oneweek following the aforesaid meeting with
QAD, plaintiff was officially placedon perfornancemonitoring by the enployee managerant
division of theNYPD.

133. On October 19, 2009,n an increasingly desperateattenpt to suppress
plaintiff's disclogire of the corruption anddeceptive practices plaguing the 8% Precinct,

defendant CAUGRY issued a precinctwide personnel nemo to all personnel of the §1
Precinctordering anyand all calls from IAB be first directedto his office, regardlessof the
specificofficer IAB wasattemptingto contact.

134. On October 21, 2009laintiff was interviewed by telephoneby members of
the “Group I” Internal Affairs Bureau regarding hisallegations of misconduct against
defendants CAUGHEY and RISS.

135. On October21, 2009, with deliberate indifference to plaintiff's safetpd
welfare, IAB attemptedto contactplaintiff to discuss thesubstance othe UF-49 hehad filed
againstdefendant CAUGHEYon August 20, 2009, ecall which was routedfirst to defendant
CAUGHEY who wasalsothesubjectof the canplaint.

Plaintiff Continuesto PursueHis Appeal But To No Avalil

136. Thereafteron October28, 2009,plaintiff contactedSGT DEVINO toarrarge a
meetingregardinghestatusof hisappeal.

137. At this meding SGT DEVINO informed plaintiff that she was ignorantto
the statusof plaintiff's appeal and feigned sentments ofsurpise and disbeliefthat the process
was stillongoing.

138. Thereafter, plaintiff's father, Larry Schoolcraft, contacted Mayor
Bloomberg’s officeto reportthe repeatedand continuinginstancef corruptionwithin the 8%

Precinct to which plaintiff had borewitness,andto inquire asto the reasonplaintiff wasbeing
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deprived the righto appeahis perfornanceevaluation.

On October 31, 2009Plaintiff is Menacedat Work by Lt. Caughey, WhomPIlaintiff Had
Previously Reported to Internal Affairs

139. Thereafter, onOctober31, 2009, upon comencenment of his tour of duty,
defendantCAUGHEY asked to “scratch” or inspect plaintiff's memo book and when plaintiff
complied defendant CAUGHEY confiscated the memo book.

140. Uponconfiscdion of his memo book, defenda@AUGHEY proceededo
lock himselfin aroom forthreehoursin orderto makecopiesof plaintiff's notescontained
therein, whichat this point now includedpecificinstances othe corruptiorandillegalactiity
plaintiff haddocumatedin preparatiorfor hisreport to CommissioneKelly.

141. Following defendant CAUGHEY’sconfiscation of plaintiff's mmo book,
defendanCAUGHEY begarto exhibit menacingandthreatenindehaviortowards plaintiff.

142. Specifically, defendant CAUGHEY with one handnear his gun, nade
continuous renacing gesturedirectedat plaintiff in an apparentresponseo the evidence of
corruption contaiadwithin plaintiff's memo book implicatingdefendants.

Plaintiff LeavesWork One Hour Early After Receving Permisson To Do So From Sqt.
Huffman

143. Thereafter,at approximately12:15 p.m. onOctober 31, 2008,Plaintiff was
advised bycivilian enployee P.A.A.Boston,who hadbecane awareof defendant CAUGHEY’s
increasinglthreatenindehavior, thaplaintiff's safetymaybein jeopardy.

144, As a result of thisadmonishrent and plaintiff’'s independent observations,
plaintiff's fear consegently manifestedtself in feelingsof sicknessat which time plaintiff
electedto go home rather than subject hirself to potential physical harnfrom defendant

CAUGHEY.
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145. At approximately 2:45 p.m. on October 31, 200@ssthan one hourbefore
his tourwas screduledto end,plaintiff sought pernssion totakesick leave,which he subnited
to SERE&ANT RASHEENA HUFFMAN.

146. In responseto plaintiff's request, SERGEANT HUFFMAN approved
plaintiff's release,but following plaintiff's departure, HUFFMANsubsequentlyand without
reason rescinded happroval.

147. Immediately upon plaintiff's arrival at his hone, plaintiff contactedlAB to
report defendaf@AUGHEY'’s threatenindpehavior.

148. Thereatter, plaintiff, fearful of the impending retaliatory acts to follow,
contacted hidather, Larry Schoolcraft, toreport and docunent what had justtranspired, after
which plantiff attemptedo sleepin aneffort to alleviate hisfeelingsof iliness.

149. While asleep, plaintiff received a voicenail messageon his phone from
Dr. Lamstein-- who had lastseenplaintiff on October 27, 200&ndwho knew first-hand that
plaintiff had no psychiatric disordersvhatsoever-- who was clearly bewildered asto why
defendants required plaintiff to return to commandpdeher repeated advisentsto plaintiff's
supervisorghat in her medical and professional opinionplaintiff posed nahreatto himself or
others. Dr. Lamstein neverthelessadmonishedlaintiff, presumably at defendants’ direction,
thatif he did not returnimmediately, this would “[BLOW] UP TO A MUCH BIGGER MESS
THAN [PLAINTIFF] WOULD WANT.”

The NYPD Threatensa “City-Wide Search” For Plaintiff If He Does Not Return ToWork

150. Additionally, on about om betweenthe aforesaidcorrespondencejefendant
LAUTERBORN contactedlarry Schoolcrafinquiringas toplaintiff’'s whereabouts.

151. In response,at apprximately 7:40 p.m. on October 31, 2009,arry

Schoolcraft returnedthe call and explained to defendant LAUTERBORN that he had
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communicatedavith his sonwho hadinformed himthat hewasat hone, feeling sick andwanted
to rest, to which defendant LAUTERBORNesponded insum and substance [SHOULD
PLAINTIFF NOT RETURN TO THE 81" PRECINCT], THIS IS GOING TO &T TO BE A
LARGE SCALE EVENT...WHENTHE BELLS AND WHISTLES GO OFF ITS GOING TO
BE A CITY WIDE SEARCHFORADRIAN SCHOQLCRAFT.”

152. Following that statenert, Larry Sdoolcraft inquired as to the urgencyof
Adrian’s returnto the 8f' Precinct thasameday, to which defendant AUTERBORN gaveno
legitimate explanatiorand instead,in an increasinglythreateningmanner, advised plaintiff’s
father that thingswere going to escalateshould plaintiff not return immediately to the 8%
Precinct

DefendantsUnlawfully Enter Plaintiff’'s Home and lllegally SezeHim in Order to Prevent
Him From Disclosingto the PublicHis Findings of Corruption

153. Thereafter,on Qctober 31, 2009at approxinately 9:38 p.m.,plaintiff, who
was lawfully presentinside of his homelocatedat 8260 88' Place, Apt. 2L, Glendale,NY
11385, was confrontedith approxinatelyten (10) amed high ranking policeofficers, including
but not limited to, CHIEF MICHAEL MARINO, andSTEVEN MAURIELLO, who unlawfully
enteredhis home withou& warrantpermission, or othdegaly permssiblereasorno do so.

154. In addition, at leasttwo membersof the EnergencyServicesUnit—dressedn
full riot gear with helmetsonandguns drawn alsoillegally enteredplaintiff’'s aparment.

155. Upon defendants’ unlawfulentry into plaintiff's home, the aforanentiored

defendantsorderedplaintiff to get dressedand comnmanded himto returnto the 8% Precinct

withoutanylegitimateor lawful explanation.
156. In a remarkable display of calmness under the circumstances, plaintiff

repeatedly and ecoposedly requested theeasons why defendants were unlawfuliyhis hane
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commanding hinbackto the 8F' Precinctaganst hiswill, to which defendantspretextually
respondedhat theywere “worried” and“concerned” forplaintiff's safetyandwellbeingdespite
plaintiff's repeated asirancesthat he was merely feeling sick and not in any way a dangerto
himself or othersand despite thefact that plaintiff's own NYPD appointed psychologidtad
previously inforneddefendantthatsame daythatanysuch fearsveremedicallyunfounded.

157. Immediately thereafter,plaintiff was informed that he was under suspension
for leavirg work earlythatday.

158. Further, plaintiff expressly acknowledged thatwere there work related
consequence®r his departuredefendants shoukimply follow the nornal protocolandfile the
proper paprworkto which plaintiff wouldrespndaccodingly.

DefendantsThreaten To Treat Plaintiff as an “Emotionally Disturbed Person” If He Does
Not LeaveHis Apartment “Voluntarily”

159. Despite plaintiff's overwhelningly reasonable responsehish was in total
and uttercompliance withNYPD protocoland practice, defendants respondedth a continued
refusalto leaveplaintiff’'s home, subsequentlprderinghim while armed, to the hospitalllegally
and againsthis will, to which plaintiff responded byepeatedly assertingis rights underNew
York law to refuse unwanted edicaltreatnent.

160. In retaliationto plaintiff's assertionof his rights,and with the knowledge
that plaintiff potentially possessed evidence défendants’ cminal activity and corruption,
defendant MICHAELMARINO respondedwith the following ultimatum: “YOU HAVE A
CHOICE. YOU GET UP LIKE A MAN AND PUT YOUR SHOESON AND WALK INTO
THAT BUS [ambulance] OR THEY'RE GOING TO TREAT YOU AS AN E.D.P.[emotionally
disturbedperson] AND THAT MEANS HANDCUFFS.”

161. Immediately thereafter, a series of verlal exdanges occured between

28



plaintiff and defendant CHIERMARINO, in which plantiff calmly and repeatedly expressed to
defendants thahe was refusing any more medical attention and refusedto be involuntarily
removedfrom his hone.

162. Aware that his attenpts to threatenand coerceplaintiff into complicity with
defendants’ unlawfuschene to otherwise silence platiff were futile, defendant CHIEF
MICHAEL MARINO impatiently statedin sum and subsance:“ALL RIGHT, JUST TAKE
HIM, | CAN'T FUCKING STAND HIM ANYMORE” andcommanded thathe policeofficers
presentt thelocationto forcibly takeplaintiff into custody.

163. At all relevanttimes on October 31, 2009, defendan€HIEF GERALD
NELSON was awaref defendant MARINO’s actions and fact, expressly authorized defendant
MARINO to unlawfully enter plaintiff's residence,remove plaintiff against his will, and
involuntarily confineplaintiff in apsychiatricward.

164. Upon information and belief the NYPD allegeddefendantLIEUTENANT
ELISE HANLON also intentionally(and/or at the behestof the NYPD defendants)alsely
classified plaintiff as an “Emotionally DisturbedPerson” in order to effectuate plaintiff's
involuntaryremoval from his hone.

165. Upon informtion and belief deferdant LIEUTENANT ELISE HANLON also
intentionallyand/orat the behestof the NYPD defendants ordereand/orauthorized plaintiffoe
takeninto EMS custodyas ar‘Emotionally Disturbed Person.”

166. Upon informtion and belief defendanLIEUTENANT ELISE HANLON also
intentionallyand/orat the kehestof the NYPD defendants providedAMAICA HOSPITAL with
false information regardingplaintiff's classificationas an “Emotionally Disturbed Person,” in

orderto effectuateplaintiff's involuntary confinerant.
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Plaintiff Is Violently Attacked and Forcibly Removed From His Own Home against His
will

167. Immediately thereafter, several defendant police officers, including
defendants LT.WILLIAM GOUGH, SGT. KURT DUNCAN, and LT. CHRISTOPHER
BROSCHART, pulledblaintiff out of his bed physicallyassaultechim, tore his clothesas they
threw him to the floor, illegally strip-searchechim and violently handcuffedhim with his ams
behind hisback,causingexcruciatingpainto hiswrists, shouldersams, neckandback.

168. With plaintiff bound on thefloor, alluding to the optionplaintiff had been
given ofignoring corruptionandillegality, defendanCHIEF MARINO walked overto him and
put his boot on plaintiff'$ace,and thereaftestated:IT DIDN'T HAVE TO BE LIKE THIS.”

169. Defendant CHIEF MARINO then sat on plaintiff's bed as his officers,
following his conmands,llegally searbed plaintiff's body andrecovered aligital recorderthat
plaintiff was holding. Afraid of what plaintiff might have recorded during this incident,
deferdant CHIEFMARINO illegally seizedthe recoder himself, stating contenptuously that
plaintiff was “BEING CUTE” by tryingto recordthe incident.

170. Additionally, NYPD spokesperson &l J. Browne was presentoutside of
plaintiff's apartment during the aforementionedillegal home invasion orOctober 31, 2009,
for the sole purposef providing toany potential menbersof the neda who might be present
duringthis abductiora false and misleadingaccountof thefactsand circumstances surrounding
plaintiff's involuntary confinerart.

Defendants Conduct anlllegal Search of Plaintiff's Apartment, Sezing Evidenceof
Misconduct by the NYPD

171. Thereafter, defendants illegalgearched plaintiffshomeandillegally seized
substantiakvidenceof corruptionwithin the 8% Precinctwhich plaintiff had gathereddetailing

the enforcenent of illegal quaas and the perjurious nanipulation of police reports, as well as
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plaintiff's notesregardinchis complaints againsthe 8£' precinct.

172. Specifically, defendantdlegally seized a draft of his Reportto the Police
Commissioner,Raymond Kelly, entitled “A Patolman’s Reportto the Comnssioner,” and
detailsof his collaboratiorwith retiredNew York City Police Detective/Lieutenat David Durk.

as wellas heaforanentioneddigital taperecorder.

173. In fact, plaintiff's landlord specifically observediefendantdeave plaintiff's
apartmentcarryingmultiple manilafoldersin their hands.

174. Following defendants’illegal entry, searchand seizure of plaintiff's home,
person anceffects,plaintiff was then placedin restraintsand carriedfrom his homeagainsthis
will by several armed members of the NYRDfull view of all persons at the scene
on the street

DefendantsMake Blatantly Falseand Misleading Statementsto the Hospital, Resulting in
Plaintiff’'s Confinement inthe Psychiatric Ward

175. Thereafterdefendantdransporteglaintiff involuntarily to the Jamaca
Hospital Medical Centerin an intentionaland premeditated fashionand convinced doctorso
have plantiff involuntarily adnitted as anenotionally disturtedperson.

176. Specifically defendantfalsely claimed that plaintiff “LEFT WORK EARLY
AFTER GETTING AGITATED AND CURSING HIS SUPERVISOR” and that the police
‘FOLLOWED HIM HOME AND HE HAD BARRICADED HIMSELF, AND THE DOOR
HAD TO BEBROKEN TO GETTOHIM.”

177. It should be noted that thaforementionedfalse and perjured statenents
were enphatically proverfalse by plaintiff's landlord,who providedinformation that plaintiff's
door wasnever forcibly entered, butin fact the landlordhad provided keys to defendant

MARINO in response to thialsepretensgrovidedby defendantthatplaintiff was “suicidal.”
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178. Further, defendantslso falsely clamed that plaintiff “IN ITIALLY AGREED
TO GOWITH THEM FOR EVALUATION, BUT ONCE OUTSIDE, HE RANAND HAD TO
BE CHASED.”

179. These statanents were also proven to be demonstrablyfalse by EMT
records, which clearly and flatly refute defendants’claims that plaintiff “ran” away and
“had to bechased”.

180. At no point onOctober 31, 2009 didplaintiff exhibit or engagein any of
the behaviothatdefendantsfalselyallegedin orderto secureplaintiff's involuntary confinement.
Plaintiff Is Handcuffed and Restrained in the Emergency Room, Where He is Denied
Fundamental Rights and Treatedas a Criminal

181. After his arrival to Jamaica Hospital, plaintiff was handcuffedto a gurney
for morethannine hoursduring whichtime he wagleniedthe freeuse of phonegr reasonable
access to watefpod or bathroonfiacilities.

182. When on one occasiorplaintiff was allowed to make a phonecall at
approximately 6:00 am., one of theNYPD members watching ovehim, DEFENDANT
SAWYER, said out loud:“HEY, | THOUGHT PERPSWEREN'T ALLOWED TO USE THE
PHONE.” Thereafter DEFENDANT SAWYER forcibly disconnected th@honeand hung it
up, therebyinstantlytemrminating plaintiff's phonecall.

183. SGT. SAWYER thensaid “OKAY, NOW!”, at which pointSGT. SAWYER,
assistedy other menbersof the New York City Policedeparimentincluding SGT. SHANTEL
JAMES, P.O. RAYMOND MILLER and P.O. ARTHUR SADOWSKI-orcibly grabbed
plaintiff's hair, headand body, and threw him back on topof the gurneywhich he had been
standingnext to when making the phonecall. SGT. SAWYER thenstated “Thisis what

happens to rats” anplaceda secondhandcuff onplaintiff's left handso tightly that it caused
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excuuciatingpain, anccausecis hando turnblue.
Plaintiff SpendsThree Full Days In TheEmergencyRoom of the Psychiatric Ward

184. From October 31, 2009 through Noveer 2, 2009, plaintiff was
involuntarily confinedn themedical and psychiatriemergencyroomsof JanaicaHospital.

185. While there plaitiff was kept irvoluntarily confined with other psychiatric
patientsin a roomthat hadno windowsandwas securedy doublelockedsequentiabloors,with
asecurityguardpresenttall timesstanding outside.

186. While in the JHMC emergency rogrplaintiff wasforcedto relinquishall of
his clothingand personal possessions. Thaly clothing plaintiff was given was a hospital
gown. Hewas not even allowedo wearunderwear.

187. Further,during thefirst threedaysin the hospitalplaintiff was not evengiven
a bedto sleepin. Ratherhewasforced tosleepeverynight on agurneylocatedin thehallway
of the emergencyroom of thepsychiatricward. As a result, there were always lights on
and plaintiffhadno privacywhatsoever.

188. Most importantly, duringthis time, plaintiff was deniedphysical access
to the outside world Plaintiff repeatedlyequestedn opportunity tospeakwith internalaffairs,
andto have photographskenof his nultiple bruises but treserequestsveresteadfastlygnored
by doctors andchospitalstaff as wél as NYPD personnel until soriee 48 hours or morafter
the assault on plaintiff at his home on October 31, 2009.

1809. After three days, plaintiff was formally admitted into the psychiatricward
atJHMC, where he spent themainderof his confinerent.

190. For the duration of his involuntary hospitadition plaintiff was forced to
cohabit with individuals who had severe psychiatricisorders andengagedin bizarre and

unsettlingbehavior.
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191. For example, one patient routinely combed his hair with feces, while
another patientontinuouslywalkedarownd the unitwearingbloodybandage®n hiswrists and
neck.

192. Additionally, while in the medical emergency room@nother patient
tried repeatedlyand persistentlyto induceherself tovomit, which shesucceeded imloingright
nearplaintiff. Still other patients in the hospital’s psychiatric emergency roomould routnely
screamandyell until they wereforcibly sedated.

193. There were no clocks in the unit, norwere there any mirrors. Plaintiff
ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT was conpletely cut off from the outside worldand there was
nothing he could do it aboiit

Plaintiff's Involuntary Confinement Continuesfor Six Full Days, in Clear Violation of New
York Law

194. For six full days, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT was confined against
his will at JanaicaHosptal.

195. This confinenent was unlawful, illegal and in clear violation of both New
York law andthe Constittion of theUnited States.

196. Therewas no nedical or psychiatricbasiswhatsoever fordetainingplaintiff
ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT.

197. To the catray, hospital records make clear that plaintiff ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFT was at all times, lucid, rational and fully coherent andexhibited nosigns
whatsoevepf presenting alanger tchimself orto others. In fact asdefendantSAKOV himself
noted:

During theobservation inthe unit without takingany medications,

patient was appropriaten interacton, calm and not agitated. He
deniedsuicidal or honicidal ideations. He was not experiencing
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any paranoid ideations, butwas concerned abouissuesin the
precinct. After observation fora few dayson the unit, therewere
no significant psychiatrisymptomso treatwith medications.

198. In fact, from the very outsef when plaintiff was first examined at JHMC, it
was manifestly clear that plaintiff was not in need of any psychiatric treatment, much less
involuntary confinerantin apsychiatricward.As the hospitaltself noted abouplaintiff:

He is coheent, relevant with goal directedspeechand good eye
contact. He is irritable with appropriate affect. Hedenies

hallucination ... He deniessuicidalideation, hontidal ideationat
the presat time. His memory and concentratn is intact. He is

alertandoriented....

199. Plaintiff's clear mental state was so obvious that one of the doctorsvho
initially examined plaintiff statedout loud that it was “ridiculous” that he was even brought
to the hospitalandassureglaintiff thathe would be going home shortly.

200. Notwithstanding this fact, and despitiee objectve nedical evidence
documentinghat plaintiff did not neetthe psychologicatriteria of an emotionally disturbed
patientrequiring confinerant, plaintiff remained unlawfully and involuntarily detainedwithout
anyjustificationfor six (6) days.

201. Additionally, plaintiff was denied the right to vote on November 3, 2009,
despite repeatagquestso do so, dactthatis evendocunentedn the medicalrecordsof JHMC.

202. On Novemker 6, 2009,plaintiff was suddenlydeemed safe,despiteno change
in plaintiff's prior behaviorandreleasedrom JanacaHospital.

203. In detainingplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT againshis will, defendant
JHMC violated theexpressprovisions ofMental HygieneLaw 8§ 9.39(a). This statute provides,
inter alia, that a patient may not be detainedagairst his will unless there is either 1) a

“substantial riskof physicalharmto himself as manifestedby threatsor attenpts at suicideor
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other conductlenonstratinghat heis dangerouso himself’ or 2) “a substantiatisk of physical
harmto other persongs manifesied byhomnicidal or other violent behavioby which othersare
placedin reasonabléear of serious pysicalharm.”

204. Additionally, defendanALDANA -BERNIER violated the expressprovisions
of Mental Hygiene Law § 9.39(a)when she failed to perform the necessarytests and
examinationsin orderto detemine that plaintiff was either 1) a “substantial riskof physical
harmto himself asmanifestedby threatsor attanptsat suicide or other conduct demonstrating
that he is dangeroudo himself’ or 2) “a subsantial risk of physicalharmto otherpersonsas
manifestedby homicidal or otherwiolent behavioby whichothersareplacedin reasonabléear of
serious physicatam.”

205. Further, defendant ALDANA-BERNIER falsified hospital reports in order
to securglaintiffs continued confinemetn thepsychiatricwardwhenshe notedPATIENT IS
A DANGER TO HIMSELF,” withoutpeforming any medical testto substantiatéhis.

206. As defendantJHMC's own recordsmake clear, neither of thesecriteria was
even renotdy satisfied. Accordingly, defendantscontinued detention ofplaintiff ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFTwasa grossviolation of legal, medicalandethical standardsandas such,was
acleardeparturdrom good andacceptednedicalpractices.

207. Finally, as a final insult, following his relese from JHMC, plaintiff
actually receivedh bill in the amount of $7,185.0@r his involuntary confinenent, for which
JHMC actuallycollectedmoney.

The NYPD’s Crucial Role In Ensuring Plaintiff’'s Continued D etention At Jamaica
Hospital

208. Upon information and belief, all of the aforementionedacts up to and
including plaintiff's involuntary confinerant were part of a deliberate, concentratedand
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premeditated effortto silence plaintiffand intimidate any other merbers of the NYPD who
soughtto disclose the plagus corruptionandillegalitieswithin the departrant.

2009. In furtherance of this objective,the NYPD defendantsenteredplaintiff's home
on October3l, 2009 andillegally sazed plaintiff and evidence ofNYPD corrugion and
misconduct plaintifhadpreviouslygathered.

210. In furtherance ofthis objective,the NYPD defendants conspired tand did
intentionally falsify evidenceand submitted it to JHMC staff for the sole purpose of having
plaintiff committed to itspsydiatric wardin an effort to silace, intmidate,threateror otherwise
deemplaintiff incredible should the evidenad# corruptionand misconductwithin plaintiff's
possession &r surface.

211. In furtherance of this objective, the NYPD defendantsmantained contact
with JHMC for thesix (6) daysto engire thatplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTremained at
the hospitalanddid so for the sole purpose of ensutihgt JHMC continuedo detainplaintiff.

212. In fact, when questionedby plaintiff about his release date, defendant
ISAKOV respondedhat he “WANTED TO HEAR FROM THE [POLICE] DEPARTMENT
FIRST” beforehe couldanswer thatuestiorandtell plaintiff when he would beeleased.

213. In allowing theNYPD to dictate the melical policy at JHMC, andin utterly
disregarding thdegal requirenents of Mental Hygiene law 8§ 9.39(a)by ignoring objective
medical evidencehat plaintiff wasnot a dangerto himself or others, defendadHMC departed
from goodand acceptedmedical practiceby unlawfully and involuntarily confiningplaintiff for
six days.

214. Additionally, defendantJHMC, in furtherance of its agreenent and
conspiracy withNYPD officials, explicitly and/ortacitly formed an agreenentto involuntarily

confine plantiff despite ofective medical evidence mandating hisrelease,as a “favor” to
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defendant officersn furtheranceof their scheme to ultimately silenceplaintiff and/or oherwise
impeach higredibility.

Defendants’ Egregious Conduct Forces Plaintiff To Move Upstate, Yet Defendant’
Campaign of Harassment And Intimidation Continues

215. As a resultof the fagoing, the NYPD deéndants, through a campaign of
harassent andintimidation, forced plaintiff to moveto upstateNew York, approxinately 200
miles awayfrom New York City.

216. Notwithstanding this move, betweenDecember 2009and continuing on
throughthe presentammed NYPD officials including SERGEANTRICHARD WALL,
SERGEANT ROERT W. O'HARE, LIEUTENANT THOMAS HANLEY, CAPTAIN
TIMOTHY TRAINOR, SERGEANTSONDRA WILSON andseveralotherNYPD defendants
continued theirelentlessffortsto silenceharassand/or aherwiseharmplaintiff andhisfatherin
theform of makingor directingover a dozemappearances his homdn upstate Mw York.

217. During these“visits”, the NYPD has dispatchedteans of amed detectives
and otherammed membersof the New York City Police Departnent, includingSERGEANT
SONDRA WILSON, LIEUTENANT THOMAS HANLEY, SERGEANT ROBERT W.
O’'HARE and SERGEANT RICHARD WALL to harassand intmidate plaintiff by pounding
andkicking on his dooandshouting‘NYPD. WE KNOW YOU'RE IN THERE,OPEN UP!!I”

218. In oneinstance,on Decanber 9, 2009, onef the aforementioneddefendants
drove abou00 miles outside ofNYPD jurisdiction ontaxpayer'smoney—nerelyto “spy” on
plaintiff through his bedroom window.

2109. In response to this blatant and endless attempt to continubashss and
intimidate plaintiff, plaintiff moved hisbed out of said bedroom inorderto preventimminent
physicalandemotionaharmupon his person.
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220. Notwithstanding thisaction, amed NYPD officials including SERGEANT
RICHARD WALL, SERGEANTROBERTW. O'HARE, LIEUTENANT THOMAS HANLEY,
SERGEANTSONDRAWILSON andsame ofthe other NYPDdefendantgontinue,to come to
his hone, repeatedlypound on his door, photograph himnd engagein efforts designedto
purposefullyintimidate and harasplaintiff in atirelesseffort to slencehim onceandfor all.
Plaintiff's Allegationsof Corruption and Fraud Within the NYPD Are Substantiated

221. On June 23, 2010, th@uality AssuranceDivision within the NYPD issued
a reportof its findings regardingthe allegationsof corruption nadeby Adrian Schodatraft prior
to his unlawful imprisonmntanddetention on October 31, 2009.

222. The findings ofhe investigation subgantiatedthe allgations that canplaint
reportsfor index crimes were not being enteredinto the Omni Systemcomplaint databaseard
thatcrimeswerebeingimproperlyreportedn orderto avoid indexcrimeclassification.

223. Specifically the general findings of thenvestpation sterming from the
allegationsof corruption nade by Officer Schoolcraft concludethat a substantial amouruf
crime reportghat should havébeenclassifiedas index crimeswere either being downgradedr
notenterednto thedatabasatall.

224, Further, the investigationfound that this fraudulentcrime recordingwas the
result of awidespreadpatternandpradice,” which createdncentvesto downgradendex crimes
and/or refuseéo recordindexcrimesasreportedoy civilians.

Defendants’ Pattern of Misconduct and Unlawful Behavior, and the NYPD’s Deliberate
Indifference to Disciplining Supervising Officers.

225. The incidentssetforth abovewere not isolatedevents, butather,were part of
an ongoingpaternof illegal andunlawful conduct on thpartof thedefendant$erein.

226. In fact, many of the NYPD defendints narad in this action have beenthe

39



subject ofintemal affairs investgations andér deparmental hearingsconcerningallegationsof
miscondict, assetforth below.
Defendant Mauriello’s Misconduct

2217. For examplePefendant MAURIELLOhasalso beenthe subjectof aninternal
affairs investigation.

228. As a direct result of plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTS allegations,|IAB
is investigatinglefendantMAURIELLO’s manipulatiorof crime statistics.

229. Specifically, defendant MAURIELLO routinely fabricated crime reports
resulting inviolent feloniesbeing downgradedo petty misdeneanorscreatingthe appearance
that the81stPrecinct'scrimeratewasmuchlower statisticallythanin reality.

230. Further, defendantMAURIELLO also commanded officerso increasetheir
“activity” and meettheir quotas, istructingthem on how totake peopleinto custady illegally
andwithout probableause.

231. Additionally,as evidenceof thesedirectives,Sgt. Raymond Stukesand
Officer Hector Tiradoof the 8%' Precict wererecently indictedfor their perjurioustestimony
regardingan incidentwheretheyhadfalselyallegedthat theyhad borewitnessto anindividual
(an undercovelAB agent) attemptto sell bootlegcigaretteso two peoplewhenin factit had
never occurred.

232. Notwithstanding the fact that plaintiff's aforementionedallegations agairst
defendanMAURIELLO were confimedby the intemal affairs investigation, absolutelyone of
defendant MAURIELLO'’s authority or dutyasmodifiedin anyway.

233 Other highranking defendants in this case have engagedsubstantial

misconduct and received little, if any, discipline from the NYPD. For exarppler to the
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events of October 31, 2009, Defendant MARINO was found to have imposed an illegal quota
when he was the commanding officer of thé" Becinct and he was not disciplined for that
misconduct and in fact was thereafter promoted to the position he had as the Deplityf Chi
Patrol Borough Brooklyn North at the time of his misconduct in this case.

234. Indeed, just one month before the events of October 31, 2009 Defendant
MARINO was faced with an internal NYPD trial arising from his illegade of steroids and
despite these allegations none of defendant MARINO’s authority or duty was modifae i
way.

235. Similarly, Defendant NELSON has been the subject of NYPD internal
investigations for misconduct and never actually given any meaningful punishynret NYPD.

236. Indeed Defendant NELSONeceived “leaked” information from IAB about
complaints by members of the service, just like Defendant MAURIELLO ddutafieaked”
information about Officer Schoolcraft's reports in this case, and DefendasbrNeked that
leaked information, just like Defendant MAURIELLO did, to improperly reprichar punish a
member of the service for making a complaint, stating specifically “we hiavel$” at IAB

237. As a result of the foregoingplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT sustained,
inter alia, bodily injuries, mental angush, shock, fright, apprehension, dparrasment,
humliation, anddeprivationof his castitutional rights.

238. As a resultof the foregoing plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of his liberty, was denied fundamatal constitutional rights,was publicly embarassedand
humiliated, was causedo suffer severe motional distress,was causedo suffer physicalinjuries
to hisheadneck,backandams, was involuntarilyconfinedto Jamata Hospital Medical Centand
was forced tancur subgantialexpenses.

239. Plaintiff repeatsreiteratesand reallegessachandeveryforegoingallegation
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with the same force and effect asif fully setforth herein.

240. All of the aforementioned acts of defendathisiy agents, seants and

employeeswerecarriedout under the colarf statelaw.

241. All of the aforementionedactsdeprived plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT
of the rights, privileges and immunities guaranted to citizens of theUnited States by the
First, Fourth, Fifth, and Fourteenth Arandmentsto the Constitutionof the United Statesof
America, andn violationof 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

242. The acts complained of were carried out by the aforanentioned individual
defendantsn their capacitiesas police orFDNY or JHMC officers employees, or agent,
with all the actualand/or apparent authority attendtrgreto.

243. The acts complained of were carried out by the aforanentioned individual
defendants intheir capacitiesas police or FINY or JHMC officers, employees, or agents
pursuantto the cwstoms, usages, practiceprocedures, anthe rules of the City of New York,
the New York City Police Deparnent, the New York City Fire Department,and JHMC,
all under the supervision afanking offices, employees, or agent$ saiddepartmerg and the
acts of JHMC and Defendants Bernier and Isakov were taken under the assumed gy@aérnm
authority and responsibility to protect the public, in violation of accepted methcalasds and
New York MentalHygiene Law 8§9.39.

244, Defendants,collectively and individually, while acting under color of state
law, engagedn conductwhich constituted acustan, usage,practice,procedure orule of the
respectivemunicipality/authoritywhichis forbiddenby theConstitdion of theUnited States.

EIRST CLAIM F OR RELIEF
VIOLATION OF FIRST AMENDMENT R IGHTS UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

245. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
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allegationwith thesameforceandeffectas iffully setforth herein.

246. NYPD defendants infringeent upon and violation of plaintiff's rights
protected undethe First Amendmentto the United StatesConstitdion was intendedto harm
plaintiff, and toplacea chlling effect uponthe exerciseof suchrights by plairtiff and other
persmsasis their right,as povidedby theU.S. Constitutiorandexercse of such rigts.

247. Furtherbefore and afteplaintiff’'s suspension on October 31, 2009 téPD
defendants unconstitutionally impos#teseprior restrainton plaintiff's speechin an effort by
defendants tgilence,intimidate, hreatenandprevent phintiff from disclosing the evidenas
corruptionand misconducplaintiff hadbeencollectinganddocumenting to thenediaandthe
publicatlarge.

248. Additionally, NYPD defendantsalso seized plaintiff's personal notesand
other effectsregarding his camplaints against the 8f' precinctin an effort to prevent said

material frombeing disclosedo anyoneand especiallymembersof the news mediaandvictims

of the aforenentioned corruption.

249, Further, defendantsinvoluntarily committed plaintiff to the psychiatricward
of Jamaica Hospital as an emotionally disturbd person and following his release made
repeated tripfiundredsof miles outside oftheir jurisdiction to his homen upstateNew York in
a continueckffort to harass anahtimidatehimin orderto prevent hispeectirom being uttered.

250. The aforementioned conductesulted in a chilling effect on plaintiff's
speech therebphysically preventing his peechfrom being utteredto the mediaand pulic at
large; or alternativey, to ultimately discredit hisspeechwhen andif it wereto be utteredby
makinghim appeafemotionally disturbed.”

251. Moreover, theallegations and evidence of corruption, misconduceind a

fraud uponthe public at large, which plaintiff was gathering andoreparing todisclose,was
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eventually investigatelly theQuality Assurance Division.

252. Additionally, on June 23, 2010 thadlegationsof corruption, misconduct
and fraud upon the publin misclasdiying, not classifyingand falsifying civilian complaints
in order to avoid index crime classification were substatiated by the NYPD Quality
Assurance Division.

253. FurtheNYPD defendantsacions violated plaintiff's First Amendment right
to spealoutas citizerregardinga matterof extrene publicconcernwhich constitutedandfraud
on the publi@andabreachof the publictrust— nanely widespread corruption, illegatactices
and themanipulation ofcivilian complaints by the very same individualssworn to protectthe
public atlarge.

254. Moreoverfollowing the home invasion oDctober31, 2009at
approxinmately9:40 p.m.plaintiff was suspendedby the NYPD, thusrenderingdisclosure of
the evidenceof corruption and miscondusatithin the policedepartmentnot pursuanto any
functionasa police officerbut purely asacitizenregardingmattersof public concern.

255. All of theactions taken by defendantsfollowing plaintiff's suspension were
directlyin violationof his rightsas securefly the First Amendmentof the Constittion.

256. Moreover theactions taken by NYPD defendants followingplaintiff's
suspension onOctober 31, 2009 in continuingp involuntary confine him at JHMC and
relentlessly harassinghreatenig and intimidating himat his new homein upstateNew York
violated plantiff's First Amendmentright as he was continuing to attempt to disclose
information to the publicat large thatthe largestPolice Departnentin the United Stateshad
committed seriaus and continuousreache®f the publidrust.

257. NYPD defendants continuetb attemptto impose tis prior restrant on
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plaintiff's speechin an effort to silence, intimidate, threateand preventplaintiff from disclosing
the evidenceof corruptionand misconduct plaintiffhad been collecting and documentingto
themediaandthe publicatlarge.

258. NYPD dekendant’s aforementioned conduct was not authorized by law and
insteadcorstituted a catinued attempto restrain plaintiff's speechfrom ever being uttered,
whichis presunptively unconstitutional.

259. Further, NYPD defendants’ actions continuedo deprive plaintiff's First
Amendmentright to speakout ascitizenregading a natterof extrene public concermamely
widespreadcorruption andllegal practicesby the very sane individualssworn to protectthe
publicatlarge.

260. As such,NYPD defendants conduetasin direct violation of plaintiff's right
to freedonof speeclassecuredy theFirstandFourteeith Amendmnents.

261. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff's liberty was restricted for an
extended periodof time, he was put in fear for his safety, was humiliated, subjectedto
handcuffing, and othgrhysicalrestraints inan attempt to restrainhim from exercisinghis rights
protectedunder theFirst Amendmentto the United Stakes Constution and with the irtent to
harm plaintiff, and toplacea chilling effectupon theexerciseof such rightdy plaintiff andother
persons.

SECONDCLAIM FOR RELIEF
FALSE ARREST UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

262  Plaintiff repeats,reiteratesand reallegeseachand everyforegoing allegation
with the same force and effect asif fully setforth herein.
263. As a result of the abresaidconductby defendantsplaintiff was subjected

to illegal, improperand false arrestby the defendantsand takeninto custodyand causedto
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be falselyimprisoneddetainedandconfined withoutany probablecauseprivilege or consent.

264. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff's liberty was restricted for an
extended periodof time, he was put in fear for his sdety, and he was humiliated and
subjectedto handcuffingandotherphysicalrestraintswithout probableause.

THIRD CLAIM F OR RELIEF
MALICIOUS ABUSE OF PROCESS UNDER 42 U.S.C. 8 1983

265. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith thesameforceandeffectas iffully setforth herein.

266. Defendantsssuedand/or comme nc e dlegal processto place
plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTunderfalsearrestand imprisonment and to havierh
involuntarily committed to JHMC

267. Defendantsarrestedand/or instituted legal procesplaintiff in order
to obtain collateral objectivesouside the legitmateends of théegalprocess.

268. Defendants arresteglaintiff in order to dotain he collateral oljective of
preventingplaintiff from appealinghis performanceevaluation.

2609. Defendants arresteglaintiff in order to obtain he collateral bjective of
preventing plaintiff from disclosing the afrementioned evidencef NYPD misconduct and
corruptionplaintiff hadbeencollectinganddocumenting.

270. Defendants acted with intent to do harm to plaintiff ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFT, withouexcuseor justification.

271. As a result of the foregoing, plaintiff's liberty was restricted for an
extended péod of time, he was put in fear for his sdety, and he was humiliated andsubjected

to handcuffingandotherphysicalrestraintswithout probableause.
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FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
EXCESSIVE FORCE UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

272. Plaintiff repeats,reiteratesand reallegessachand everyforegoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.
273. The level of force enployed by defendntswas objectively unreasonabland
in violation of theconrstitutionalrights of theplaintiff.
274. As aresult of the foregoingplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT sustained,
inter alia, bodily injuries, mental anguish, shoclright, apprehension, nebarrasment, and
humiliation, anddeprivationof his canstitutional rights.

FIFTH CILAIM FORRELIEF
FAILURE TO INTERCEDE UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

275. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.

276. The defendantshad an affirmative duty to intercede when plaintiff's
conrstitutional rightsverebeingviolatedin defendantspresenceby theuseof excessivdorce.

277. Defendantdurther violated plaintiff's constituional rights when they failed to
intercedeand prevent theiolation or further violation of plaintiff's constitutional rightsand the
injuriesor furtherinjuriescausedas aresultof saidfailure.

278. The defendantshad an affirmative duty to intercede when plaintiff's
constitutional rightswere being violated in defendants’ prance by falsifying evidence of
probablecauseto arresplaintiff.

279. As a result of the defendants’failure to intercede when plaintiff's
constituional rightswere being violated in defendants’ presencplaintiff sustainedinter alia,

physicaland emotional ijuries.
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SIXTH CLAI M FOR RELIEF
UNLAW FUL SEARCH AND ENTRY UNDER 42 U.SC. 8 1983

280. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.

281. As a result of the aforesaidonduct by defendants, plaintiffdhome and
possessionsvere illegally and improperly enteredwithout, avalid warrant, probable cause,
privilege or consentjn violation of his constitdional rights as setforth in the Fourth Fifth and
Fourteenth Arendmentsto the Constitution of theUnited States.

282. As a result of the aforesaidconductby the defendantsplaintiff's home
was enteredlegally at atime notprescribedin awarrant,in violation of his constittional rights
as setforth in the Fourth, Fifth and Fouteenth Amendments to the Constittion of the
United States.

283. As a reallt of the aforesaid coduct by the defendants, plaintiffADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFTwas not provided acopy of saidwarrantupon hisrequestjn violation of his
constitutional rights as se forth in the Fourth, Fifth and FourteenthAmendmentsto the
Constitdion of theUnited States.

284. As a result of the aforesaid mduct by defendants, plaintiffshome and
possessions were illegallgnd improperly searched without any warrant, probaldause,
privilege or consentjn violation of his constitutional rightsas setforth in the FourthFifth and
Fourteetth Amendmentsto the Constitution of theUnited States.

SEVENTH CILAIM _FOR RELIEF
INVOLUNTARY CONFINEMENT UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

285. Plaintiff repeats,reiteratesand reallegeseachand everyforegoing

allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.
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286. Defendants JIMHC, ISAKOV and ALDANA -BERNIER, unlawfully and
involuntarily confined plaintiff toJHMC for six (6) dayswithout plaintiff’'s pemissian, consent
or any lawful basisfor doing so,in violation of his constitutional rightsas set forth in the
Fourth,Fifth and Fourteeth Amendmentsto the Constitution of theUnited States.

287. Further, defendantsJMHC ISAKOV and ALDANA -BERNIER violated
plaintiffs rights underthe New York StateMental HygieneLaw 8 9.39(a)when they failed to
performthe proper anchecessaryeststo degeminethatplaintiff waseither 1) a “substantiatisk
of physicalharmto himself as manfested bythreatsor attampts at suicide or other conduct
demonstratinghat he s dangerout himself” or 2) “asubstantiatisk of physicalharmto other
personsas manifestedby hamicidal or other violent behavioby which othes are placedin
reasonable feasf serious physicdtarm.”

288. As a reslt of theaforesaid corduct by defendants plaintiff was unlawfully
detainedandinvoluntarily confinedo hospitaltreatmentwithout any justification,in violation of
his constitutional rightsas set forth in the Fourth,Fifth and Fourteenth Armandnentsto the
Constitdion of theUnited States.

289. As aresult of the aforesaidconductby the defendantglaintiff was deprived
of his substantive angbrocedural dugrocessrights, as set forth in the Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendnentsto the Constitution of theUnited States.

290. As a resultof the foregoing,plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of hisliberty, wasdeniedfundametal constitutional rightsywas publicly embarassedand
humiliated, was causedo suffersevereemotional digiess,wasinvolurtarily confinedto hospital

treatmentandwas forcedo incursubstantialexpenses.
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EIGHTH CLAIM FOR
RELIEF
CONSPIRACY TO VIOLATE PLAINTI FF'S CIVIL RIGHTS UNDER 42 U .S.C. § 1983

291. Plaintiff repeats reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationasif thesameweremorefully setforth atlengthherein

292. Defendantsconspired andactedin concertto do whateverwas necessary,
lawful or not, to causethe arrest, imprisonment,and involuntary confinerant of plaintiff
ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT.

293. Throughout theperiod of the conspiracy, the defendants pursubeir
objectives withactual malice toward plairtiff, with utter and deliberate indifferenceto and
disregardfor plaintiff's rights under the Constitution ardws of the United Stateswithout
probableor reasonlle causeo believeplaintiff conmitted anycrimeor anyotherlawful basis for
doing so.

294, Pursuanto the conspiracy, theonspirators, andheir enployees,agentsand
servantsjntentionally,recklessly,negligently, and/orwith completeindifferenceto the rights of
plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT:(a) manufacturedfalse evidenceand destroyed eviderce
(b) unlawfully entered plaintiff's hoe; (c) illegally seizedplaintiff's property; (d) verballyand
physically threatened platiff in an attampt to silence him; (e) stalked and menacedplaintiff
at his hone; and (b) pressured,bribed, coercedand induced individualsto have plaintiff
involuntarily confinedto hospitaltreatment without his consent oany other lawful basisfor
doing so.

295. As a resultof the foregoingplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of hisliberty, wasdeniedfundametal constitutional rightsywas publicly embarassedand
humiliated, wascausedo suffersevereemotional digiess,wasinvolurtarily confinedto hospital

treatmentandwas forcedo incursubstantialexpenses.
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NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
VIOLATION OF SUBSTANTIVE AND PROCEDURAL DUE PROCESSUNDER 42

U.S.C. §1983

296. Plaintiff repeats reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.

297. Despite the fact that defendantsJHMC, ISAKOV and ALDANA -BERNIER
had no objectiveinformation whatsoevetto believethat plainiff was a dangerto himself or
anyoneelse, plaintiffwas involuntarilyhospitalizecandremanedtherefor six (6) days.

298. DefendantsIHMC, ISAKOV andALDANA -BERNIER nevermadeany
detemination—as isrequiredoy theConstituion —thatthatplaintiff was adangeto himselfor
anyoneelse and forcibly restrained Plaintiff and permitted forcibly restrainthovit considering
less restrictive alternatives even though no emergency existed and fRiaatifot dangerous to
himself or others, in violation of Plaintiff's substantive and procedural due progbts r

299. Further, any such detemation by defendantsJHMC, ISAKOV and
ALDANA - BERNIER that that plaintiff was a dangerto himself or anyone else was not
made with any objectivecriteriaor ary reasonble degreeof accuracy.

300. Defendants JHMC, ISAKOV and ALDANA -BERNIER, unlawfuly and
involuntarily confined plaintiff toJHMC for six (6) dayswithout plaintiff's pemission, consent
or any lawful basisfor doing so,without notice andn opportunityto be heard,and without any
opportunityto confront adverswitnessesor presentevidence onhis own behalf,in violation of
his constitutimal rights as setforth in the Fifth and Fourteenth Arandnentsto the Constittion
of theUnited States.

301. As aresultof the aforesaidconductby the defendantsplaintiff was deprived
of his substantive angbrocedural dugrocessrights, as set forth in the Fifth and Fourteenth

Amendnentsto the Constitution of theUnited States.
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302. As a resultof the foregoing,plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of his liberty, was denied fundamatal constitutional rights,was publicly embarassedand
humiliated, wascausedo suffersevereemotional digiesswasinvolurtarily confinedto hospital
treatmentandwas forcedto incursubstantialexpenses.

303. As a result of the aforesaidconductby defendantsplaintiff was deprivedof
his liberty and involuntarily confinedfor six (6) daysat JHMC in violation of his substantive
and procedural dugrocessrights as set forth in the Fifth and Fourteenth Anendmentsto the
Constitution of theUnited States.

TENTH CLAIM FORRELIEF
MUNICIPAL LIABILITY UNDER 42 U.S.C. § 1983

304. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully setforth herein.

305. Defendants,collectively and individually, while acting under color of state
law, engagedn conductthat constituteda custan, usage, practiceprocedureor rule of the
respective municipalfauthaity, whichis forbiddenby theConstitdion of theUnited States.

306. The aforementionedustans, policies, usagespractices,proceduresand rules
of the City of New York and the New York City Police Deparment included,but were not
limited to:

I. Creatinga quotasystem forNYPD subordinatefficers requiringthe officers
to issuea certainnumber of stops, arresting, osummonses pemonthand
yearregardles®f reasonable suspicion, or probabtéeise;

il. Creatinga mlicy of awardingincentives to officerswho meet or exceedthe
required number of stops, arresting, osummonsesaccordingto NYPD’s

quota;

iii. Creatinga policyof punishingofficers who fail to meetthe requirednunber
of stops, arrests, or summonsgssablishedby NYPD's quota;

iv. Intimidating and threatening policefficers with retaliationwhen said police
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officerschallengeunlawfulNYPD quotapolicies;

V. Intimidating and threatening policefficers with retaliationwhen said police
officers attenpt to disclose istances of NYPDcorruption and police
misconductfraudandbreache®sf the publictrust;

Vi. Retaliatingagairst policeofficers with suspensionand disciplinary hearings
who discloser attenptto discloseNYPD corruptiorandpolice misconduct;

vii.  Displaying a daberate indifferenceto disciplining supervisors, despite
allegations ofillegal and/or unconstitutionalorduct; and

viii.  Intentionally“leaking” officers IAB complaints—which IAB is duty bound to
keep confidential —for purposes ofalerting NYPD peronnel and other
supervisoy officers,whomarethe subject of theomplaints, inan ongoing
effort to discouragéuture IAB complaints and/orsilencethosein existence.

307. The existence of the aforesaid unconstitutionalcustans and policies may
be infared from repeatedoccurrencesof similar wrongful conductas has been recently
publicized in the migersof PoliceOfficer's Adhyl PolancaandFrank Pallestro.

308. The foregoing custans, policies, usages,practices,proceduresand rules of
the Cityof New York and theNew York City PoliceDepartnent werethe movingforce behind
the constitutional violationsufferedby plaintiff asallegedherein.

3009. Additionally, the NYPD’s deliberate indifference to proper training,
supervising and/ordisciplining of policy making officials such as defendantsMARINO,
NELSON and MAURIELLO constitued explicit and/or tacit approval of their illegal and
unconstitgional conduct.

310. Further,the NYPD'’s deliberateindifferenceto propertraining and supervision
of the Internal Affairs Bureau regarding maintainhg the confidentiality ofcomplainants
constitutes mplicit and/or tacit approval of illegal and unconstittional conduct tlereby
discauraging the disclosre of illegal and unconstitutimal actsin violation of the Fourthand

Fourteenth Anendnentsto theUnited StateConstitution.
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311. As a result of the foregoing custans, policies, usages practices,procedures
and rulesof the City of New York and the New York City Pdice Deparment, plaintiff
ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT was subjectedto unlawful and excessiveforce resulting in
pemanentand disablingnjuries.

312. Defendants,collectively and individually, while acting under color of state
law, weredirectly andactivelyinvolvedin violating phintiff's constitutional rights.

313. Defendantscollectively and individually, while actingunder color of state
law, acquiesceth a patternof unconstitutional condudty subordinate policefficers,andwere
directly responsible forthe violation of plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTs constitutional
rights.

314. The acts camplained were a drect and proximate result of the usages,
practices, proceduremdrulesof theCity of New York, theNew York City Police Deparnent,
and JHMCwhich constituteddeliberateindifferenceto the satkty, well-being and constitutional
rightsof plaintiff.

315. The foregoing custans, policies, usages,practices,proceduresand rules of
the City of New York and the New York City Police Department were the direct and
proximate causef theconstitutionaliolationssufferedoy plaintiff as allegedherein.

I Not to be deprived of liberty without due process of law;
ii. To be free from seizure of liberty and arrest not based upon probable cause;

iii. Not to have excessive force imposed upon him;

2 Not to have summary punishment imposed upon him;
V. To receive equal protection under the law; and
Vi. Not to be deprived of his right to free speech.
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PENDENT STATE CLAIMS

316. Plaintiff repeatsreiteratesand reallegeseachand everyforegoingallegation
with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

317. On or about January27, 2010, and within(90) days after the claim herein
accrued,the plaintiff duly servedupon, presentedo and filed with defendanfTHE CITY OF
NEW YORK, a Notice of Claim setting forth all facts and information required under the
GeneraMunicipalLaw § 50 (8.

318. Defendant THECITY OF NEW YORK has wholly neglected or refusedto
make anadjustnent or paymentthereofand more thanthirty (30) days haveelapsedsincethe
presentatiomf such claimas aforesaid.

319. Upon informtion and belief, defendanfTHE CITY OF NEW YORK hasnot
yet demandedahearingpursuanto GeneraMunicipalLaw 8§ 50-h.

320. This action was commencedwithin one (1) year and ninety (90) days after
the causef actionhereinaccrued.

321. Plaintiff has complied with all conditions precedentto mantaining the
instant action.

322. This actionfalls within one or nore of the exceptionsasoulinedin C.P.L.R.
§1602.

EIRST CLAIM FORRELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW: ASSAULT

323. Plaintiff repeats,reiteratesand reallegeseachand everyforegoing
allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

324. Defendants’ aformentionedactionsplacedplaintiff in apprehension of

imminent harmfubndoffensive bodilycortact.
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325. As a result of defendants’ conduptaintiff hassufferedphysicalpainand
mental anguishtogetherwith shock fright, apprehesion, enbbarrasment,and hunliation.
SECOND CLAIM FORRELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE L AW: BATTERY
326. Plaintiff repeats reiteratesand reallegeseachand everyforegoing

allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein.

327. Defendanpoliceofficersassaulteglaintiff in aharmfulandoffensive nanner.
328. Defendanpoliceofficersdid so without privilege or consent fraptaintiff.
329. As a result of defendants’ conduptaintiff hassufferedphysicalpainand

mental anguishtogetherwith shock,fright, apprehension, doarrasmentandhumniliation.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW: FALSE ARREST

330. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect asif fully setforth herein.

331. Defendants arrested plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT in the absence of
probablecauseandwithout awarrant.

332. As a result of the aforesaid conduct by defendants, plaintif ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFT wassubjectedo an illegal, improperand false arrestby the defendantsand
takeninto custodyand causedo be falsely imprisoned, detained;onfined, inarcerated anthy
the defendants. The aforesaid actionby the defendantsonstituteda deprivation of the
plaintiff's rights.

333. As a resultof the foregoingplaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of his liberty, was denied fundamatal rights, was publicly enbarrased and humniliated, was
causedo suffer severeemotionaldistresswas involuntaily confinedto hospitaltreatment, was

forced toincur substantiabxpenseandhadhis personahndprofessional reputatiashestroyed.
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FOURTH CLAIM F OR RELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW:
FALSE IMPRISONMENT

334. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect asif fully setforth herein.

335. As aresultof theforegoing, plaintiffADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwas falsely
imprisoned, hidiberty was restrictedfor an extendedperiod oftime, was put in fear for his
safety,was humiliated andsubjectedo handcuffingandotherphysicalrestraints.

336. Plaintiff wasconsciou®f saidconfinementanddid not consertb said

confinement.

337. The confinenent of plaintiff was without probable cause and was not
otherwise privileged.

338. As a result of the aforamentioned conductplaintiff has sufered physical
and nentalinjury, togethemwith enbarrasment,humiliation, shockfright andlossof freedan.

339. As a resultof the foregoing plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of his liberty, was denied fundanental rights, was publicly enbarrassedand humniliated, was
caused tosuffer severe emotional distress,was involuntaily confined to Jamaica Hospital
Medical Centerwas forced toincur substantiabxpensesnd had his personahnd professional
reputationdestroyed.

FIFTH CLAIM FORREILIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW: INTENTIONAL
INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS

340. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing

allegationwith the same force and effect asif fully set forth herein.

341. The aforementioned conduatias extrene and outrageousand exceededll

reasonhle bounds of decency.

57



342. The aforementioned conductvas conmitted by defendantswhile acting
within thescope of their employemtby defendanTHE CITY OF NEWYORK.

343. The aforementioned anduct was conmitted by defendantswhile acting in
furtheranceof theiremploynentby defendabhTHE CITY OF NEWYORK.

344. The aforementioned conductvas committed by defendantswhile acting
within thescope of their employemtby defendandAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER.

345. The aforementioned anduct was conmitted by defendantswvhile acting in
furtheranceof their employrentby defendandAMAICA HOSPITAL MEDICAL CENTER.

346. The aforementionedconductwas intentional and done for the sole purpose
of causingsevereemotionaldistresgo plaintiff.

347. As aresultof the aforanentioned conductplaintiff sufferedsevereemotional
distress physical and mental injury, togetherwith enmbarrasment, humiliation, shock,fright and
lossof freedan.

348. As a resultof the foregoing plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFTwasdeprived
of his liberty, was deniedfundarnental rights, was publicly enbarrassedand humiliated, was
caused tosuffer severeemotional distress,was involuntaily confinedto Jamaica Hospital

Medical Centerwas forced toincur substantiabxpensesand had his professional reputation

destroyel.
SIXTH CLAIM FORRELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW:
NEGLIGENT HIRING/TRAINING/SUPERVISION/RETENTION
(DefendantCity of New York)
349. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing

allegationwith the same force and effect as if fully sa forth herein.
NegligentRetention and Supervision of Defendant Marino

350. DefendantCITY OF NEW YORK was on noticethat defendantMarino was
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wholly unfit for duty as AssistantChief of Patrol BoroughBrooklyn North chargedwith the
responsibility of oerseeingll the precinctsin Kings County.

351. Specifically,the CITY OF NEW YORK wason notice of thdact that Marino
had violent propensitiesand an explosivetemperanent whichwould and did resultin numerous
instance®f excessivdéorceandphysicalaltercations.

352. CHIEF MARINO was found to be directly responsifibe violating New York
StateLabor Law in 2006by implementingan unlawful quota policyn the 75thPrecinct.

353. Following that finding, the CITY OF NEW YORK not only failed to

discipline him but in fact promoted him from the conmandingofficer of the 7% Precinct to

Asgstart ChiefPatrolBorough BrooklynNorth.

354. As a result of the foregoingacts of unlawful conduct and/or grossly
improper behavioby defendanMARINO, defendantCity of New York knew, or shouldhave
known, that defendanMARINO was wholly unfit for any of position of comrand, muchess
Assistant BorougiChief.

355. Notwithstandingdefendant Marino’s history of unlawful and improper
conduct, howeverdefendantCITY OF NEW YORK failed to take proper disiplinary action
agairst CHIEF MARINO, and failed to otherwise modify orlimit defendant Marino’s
responsibilitieor position of command.

356. To the contrary, the NYPDxctually rewarded defendant Marino for his
miscorductby promotinghim to AssistantBoroughChief Brooklyn North —which includes the
81stPrecinct-leadingdirectlyto theeventswvhich took placeon October 31, 2009.

357. Defendants’ negligent retention and supervision ofdefendantMarino was
the dire¢ and proximate causeof the injuries sustained byplaintiff on October31, 2009and

thereafter.
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358. As aresult of the foregoinghegligentads and omissionsby defendanCITY
OF NEW YORK, plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFThassufferedphysicaland mentalinjury,
pain andrauma,togethemwith embarrasment,humiliation shock, fright, andloss of freedm.

359. DefendantCITY OF NEW YORK selected hired, trained, retained,assigned
and supervised athenbes of saidits Police Depariment, including thedefendats individually
namedabove.

360. DefendantCITY OF NEW YORK was negligent and carelesswhen it
selected, hiredrained, retainedassignedandsupevisedall membes of its Police Departnent
including the defendants individualiymedabove.

361. Defendant CITY OF NEW YORK was negligent and carelesswhen it
repeatedly failedo actand/ordisciplinesupervisorypersanel in theface of obvious evidence of
corruption and misconduct.

Negligencan Failing to KeeplAB Complaints Confidential

362. DefendantCITY OF NEW YORK was further negligentand carelessvhen it
repeatedlyallowed allegedly confidential IAB complaintsregardingsupervisory personnéb be
“leaked” to the verysameofficials of who werehe subjectsof thecomplaints.

363. Additionally ddfendant CITY OF NEW YORK was onnotice that IAB was
failing to keep complaints ofcorruption andillegality confidential dueo a similar “leak” in the
42" Prechct regading allegations of illegality which occurredin Septenber, 2009 involving
P.O. FrankPallestro.

364. Further defenda@ITY OF NEW YORK was on notice tht IAB wasfailing

to keepcomplaints of corruptionand illegality confidential dueto a similar “leak” in the 43¢

Precinctregardingallegationof illegality involving P.O. AdhylPolanco.
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SEVENTH CLAIM FORRELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE LAW
MEDIC AL MALP RACTICE

365. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect asif fully setforth herein.

366. That JHMC, its agents, officials, doctors, nursesphysician’s assistants,
servants, mployees,and/or independerdontractors, includingbut notlimited to, DR. ISAK
ISAKOV, and DR. LILIAN ALDANA -BERNIER, jointly and severally, and individually,
departedrom goodand acceptedstandards of redical care,and were negligeit andcarelessn
the sewice rendered forand on behalf of plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT,in failing to
timdy diagnose andenderpropertreatnent to plaintiff; in failing to recmgnize hat he was not
emotionally disturbeé andin needof involuntary confinerant; in improperly and negligently
docunenting plantiff's medicalconditions on higharton thebasisof unsubstantiated heaysa
in failing to properlyinterpretthe diagnosti¢eststhat were performed; in failing to call for or
reques necessary additnal diagnostidests and stdies; in failing to properly andimely obtain
consults;in failing to hire a competentand efficient staff; in negligently lring, retaining,
supervisingand controlling staff, doctors, ntsesand other personnelin forming a diagnosis
solely basedon nonmedical professionals and/ostaff's non expert and unprofessional lay
opinion.

367. That the defendants herein, their agerd, officials, doctors, nurses,
physician’s asstants, servantsand enployees werdurther negligent and careless and violated
acceptedmedical practicesmedical custons and medical gandardsin that defendantsjointly
and/or severally, failetb haveanadequate, aopetent and/or sufficient nursistaff and/or
other personnelko properly diagnoseplaintiff which would have ensuredhis prompt and
immediate releaseincer the foreseeablecircumstances; failedo have proper supervision of
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hospital-enployed and/or affiliated physicianfailed to conformto the JointCommission of
Accreditaton of Hospitalsinsofar as the akingand/orkeepingof hospitalrecods; in failed to
promulgate and/orenforcerules, regulations and guideliness to proper psychiatriccare; and
failedto timely and/or properlgarryoutordes.

368. That as a result of the negligenceand carelessnesof the defendants
herein, plaintiff was causedto and did sustainthe severeconsequence dbeing involuntarily
confined against hiwill for six days, when there was ncedicalor professional ss todo so.

EIGHTH CLAIM FORRELIEF UNDER N.Y. STATE L AW:
NEGLIGENT HIRIN G/TRAININ G/SUPERVISION/RETENTION
(DefendantJHM C)

3609. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and realleges each and every foregoing
allegationwith the same force and effect asif fully sa forth herein.

370. DefendantJHMC selected,hired, trained, retained, assignedand supervised
all membersof its staff, including thedefendantsndividually nanedabove.

371. Defendant JHMQwas negligentand cardesswhen it selected hired, trained,
retained,assignedand supervised almembersof its staff including thedefendants individually
namedabove.

372. Due to the negligence of thedefendantsas set forth above, plaintiff
suffered physicaand nentalinjury, pain andtrauma, togetherwith emlarrassment, huiliation
shock, frightandlossof freedan.

373. By reason of the aforesaid conduct by defendants, plaintiff ADRIAN
SCHOOLCRAFTrequestshe followingrelief:

A. Compensatorydamages imnamountto be determined at trial

B. Punitive damgesin an amount to be determined at trial;
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E.

Declaratory judgment in favor of plaintiff and against each of the defesydant
finding that the defendants’ conduct was unlawful, including without limitation,
findings that the claims for relief have been established; that the practites an
policies of the NYPD on quotas for stops, summons and arrests and the
manipulation and downgrading of crime reports are unlawfat;the practices and
policies for falsification of training records are unlawfhd thatheNYPD and
JHMC records should be expunged to the extent that those records suggest that
plaintiff is (oror everwas) emotional distudd, or suffering from a mental iliness

or dangerous to himself or others.

An awardof reasonablattorney’'sfeespursuanto 42 U.S.C. § 1988, asell as
costs andlisburserants;and

Any furtherrelief as theCourt may find justandproper.

WHEREFORE,plaintiff ADRIAN SCHOOLCRAFT demands judgmerin an amount

to be determined at trial famompenstory danages,punitive damges,a declaratory judgment

in his favor and against the defendanastorney’'sfees, costs, and disburseents of this

action.

Dated: New York, New York
January 22, 2014

BY: /S
NATHANIEL B. SMITH
Attorneyfor Plaintiff
111BroadwaySute 1305
New York, New York 1006
(212) 227-7062
natbsmith@gmail.com

BY: /S
JOHND. LENOIR
Attorneys fo Plantiff
111Broadway Suite1305
New York, New York 10006
(212) 227-7062
john.lenoir@gmail.com
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